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CREMONINI S.p.A.
CENTRALIZED
PRODUCTION DISTRIBUTION CATERING ACTIVITIES
. Beef .oodservice On board

INALCA S.p.A.71,6%

MARR S.p.A.5042% |

Chef Express S.p.A.
div. “ristoraz ferroviaria” | 00%

Soc.Agr.Corticella S.r.I. 100%

Marr Foodservice

Iberica S.A.U. 100%

Cremonini Restauration S.a.s. | 00%|

Ges.Car. S.r.l. 100% I

[ Avirail talia S.r.. in liquidaz. 51%]

Guardamiglio S.r.l. 100%

As. Ca. S.p.A. 100% |
|

New Catering S.r.l. 100%

Inalca Algerie S.ar.l. 70%

Railrest S.A.51%

} DeAlSrl 100% |

|Cremﬂnini Cheflberica S.A. | oo%|

Inalca Kinshasa S.p.r.l. 51%

| Speca Alimentari S.r.l. 100% |

Inalca Brazzaville S.a.r.l. 55%

Inalca Angola Ltda. 84,98%

| |
I |
I |
| |
[ Inter Inalca Angola Ltda. 99% |
| |
| |
I |
| |

Sara S.r.l. 100%

I Inalca Eurasia Hold. Gesmbh 60%

| Kaskad Ll.c. 100% |

OrenbeefL.l.c. 100%

Marr RussiaL.l.c. 75%

Spolka L.l.c. 100%

Fiorani & C. S.p.A.51%

|
i
| Zaklady Miesne Sochocin
i
|
| Tecno-starDues.r.l. 100%

|
|
Realbeef S.r.l.51% |
|
|

Inalca Mocambique Lda. 60%

| ChefExpressUK Led. 100% |

| Lounge Services S.a.s. 100% |

| Momentum Services Ltd. 100% |

| Chef Express Eurasia L.L.c. 100% |

| Alliance ExpressL.l.c. 51% |

Global Service Logistics S.r.|
in liquidazione 100%

Chef Express Tren Ici Hizmetleri
AS 60%

Inalca Food & Beverage China Hid Ltd 55% |

ITop Best International Hid Ltd 65%'

Concession

*hongshan Inalca Food & Beverage Co Ltd \C()?l

Chef Express S.p.A.
Div “rist. in concessione” 100%

[Bright View Trading HK Ltd 57.3%|

GabfHoldings Ltd. 100%

|naHm Food & Beverage Malaysia Hid. Sdn Bhd\(ﬂ}4

Bell Carni S.r.l. 100%

[ InalcaF&BSdnBhd 100% |

Dispal Cl S.ar.l. 99%

Inalca Food & Beverage (Thailand) Ltd. 84,99% |

Commercial

i Inalca Food & Beverage Hong Kong Ltd 75% |

Roadhouse S.p.A. 100%

Inalca Food & Beverage Cabo Verde Lda 99‘4%| |

Parmaubrac Sa.s.51%

| ITAUS Pty Ltd 100%

Parma Lacombe S.a.s. 70%

|
I
|
| ParmaServsrl51%
|
|
l
I

|
|
|
|
Parma FranceSas.51% |
|
|
|

Parma Turc S.a.s. 51%

| Valtenna Carni S.r.l. in liq. | 00%

| [Roadhouse Grill Roma S.r.l. 55%|

Princeps S.a.s. 100%

| Modena Corporation Pty Ltd 100% | |

| Fresco Gourmet Pty Ltd 100%

l Inalca Food & Beverage S.r.l. 90%

.ed meat & Snacks

| IF&BHoldingInc. 100% |

lnalm Food & Beverage Morth America LI(&)%'

| ComitS.L. 60% |

| HosteriaButarellis.L. 100% |

| iralia AlimentariS.p.A. 100% |

| Tecali S.L.62.81% |

{Montana Alimentari GMBH 100%

| cibosapienss.riioox |

Global Service S.r.l. 100%

InterjetS.r.l. 100%
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Introduction

The financial statements as at 31 DecemberZ@rsuant to Legislative Decree No. 38 of 28 February 2005,
have been prepared in accordance with the criteria for evaluatiol measurement established by the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) and adopted by the European Commission according to the procedures in Article 6 of Regulation (EC)
No. 16062002 of the European Parliament and Council of 19 July 2002.

Group Performance and Analis of the Results for the 2@financial year

Cremonini Group recorded revenues @031.2 million euro in the 2017 financialear, compared t@3,701.5in

2016, an increase 0f329.7 million euro (+8.9%) mainly attributable to the inclusion of some companies in the
scope of the consolidation and the acquisition of business branches operating in the production and distribution
sectors.

Specifically, compared to 26he following changes occurred:

- commencing from 4 April 2016 DE.AL. S.r.l, operating in the distribution of food products to the
foodservicesector in Italy, was acquired and consolidated;

- on 1 May 2016 the business branches of Unipeg Soc. Coop. Adr.Aaaofood S.p.A., active in
slaughtering, processing and marketing of beef as well as pork processing in Italy, were acquired;

- on 7 June 2016, 60% of ITAUS Pty Ltd and 60% of Fresco Gourmet Pty Ltd was acquired; these
companies operate in Australia amde specialied in the distribution of the typical Made in Italy food
products; the remaining 40% of such companies was acquired in July 2017, taking the holdings to 100%;

- on 24 November 2016, 60% of Grupo Comit was acquired; this company is a leadee iditribution of
food products in the Canary Islands;

- commencing from 1 January 2017 Speca Alimentari S.r.l., operating in the distribution of food products to
the foodservicesector in Italy, was consolidated,;

- on 8 March 2017 57.3% of the shares of Btiyiew Trading Hong Kong Ltd., a major operator in the
distribution of Italian food products in the former British colony, was acquired.

The gross operating margin amounted t@126 million euro compared t0270.6in 2016, anincrease ofl

million euro, and the operating result was6ll.6 million euro compared t0172.7in 2016, down by 11.1 million

euro (-6.4%). Such margin was affected by the results of the Inalca businesses in Africa (specifically Angola,
Congo and Democratic Congo Republic) where the somption crisis, related to the fall of the crude oil price

and a worsening competitive scenario in the o0frozen
andprofitability.

The profit from ordinary activitieswas B3.1 million euro (145.5 million euro in 2016) suffered from an
unfavourable currency market trend, partially compensated by a reduction in net interest payable. With
reference to the exchange rates, it is noted that the défeces recorded in 2017, primarlyue to currencies,

were negative by 15.1 million euro mainly attributable to 8 Dollar, while the 2016 result was penalized by
10.7 million following the devaluation of the Angolan currency (Kwanza).

The pre-tax profit amounted to 133 million euro compared t0143.8 million euro in 2016.
Lastly, the net profit was 48 millioneuro compared to 3.4 million of 205.
Below are summarizedhe schedules of the financiatatementsfor 2017, compared with the consolidated

financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decemp016. For a more complete anal
results, details thereof subdivided by individual business sector are subsequently shown.
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Consolidated Income Statement

(Euro/000) Year 2017 Year 201¢  Change ¢
Total revenues 4,031,24¢ 3,701,46¢ 8.91
Changes in inventories of work in progress, semi-finished and finished goods 451 (4,439)
Value of production 4,031,691 3,697,027 9.05
Cost of production (3,362,681 (3,069,490
Value added 669,01€ 627,537 6.61
Personnel costs (397,385 (356,967
Gross operating margif® 271,631 270,57C 0.39
Amortization, depreciation and write-downs (109,991 (97,881
Operating incomé® 161,64C 172,68¢ (6.40)
Net financial income (charges) (28,579, (27,197,
Profit from ordinary activities 133,061 145,492 (8.54)
Net income (charges) from investments 545 719
Net extraordinary financial income (charges) (604) (2,421)
Result before taxes 133,002 143,79C (7.50)
Income taxes for the financial year (48,498 (50,993
Result before minority interests 84,504 92,797 (8.94)
(Profit) Loss attributable to minority interests (39,110 (41,407,
Net profit attributable to the Group 45,394 51,390 (11.67)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201t  Change ¢
Intangible assets 228,077 220,45¢

Tangible assets 977,97¢ 941,48(

Equity investments and other financial assets 33,178 21,92%

Total fixed assets 1,239,22¢ 1,183,85¢ 4.68
Trade net working capital

- Trade recelvables 557,50C 562,817

- Inventories 441,75k 407,08¢

- Trade payables (604,996 (560,810

Total trade net working capital 394,25¢ 409,091

Other current assets 90,452 96,482

Other current liabilities (96,827, (94,162,

Net working capital 387,884 411,412 (5.72)
Staff Severance Indemnity Provision and other m/l term provisions (89,546) (94,002)

Net invested capital 1,537,56¢ 1,501,26¢ 2.42
Shareholders' Equity attributable to the Group 521,892 490,67(
Shareholders' Equity attributable to minority interests 313,721 304,457

Total Shareholders' Equity 835,613 795,127 5.09
Net medium/long-term debt 553,831 591,582

Net short-term debt 148,11¢ 114,55¢

Net debt 701,95C 706,141 (0.59)
Net equity and net debt 1,537,56: 1,501,26¢ 2.42

a & EBITDA (Gross operating margiis an economic indicator not defined in the International Accounting Principles and the IFRS. EBITDA

is the measurement used by the companyds management toDAM®nitor an
an important indicatorf o r measuring the Groupds performance as it i's not af f e
criteria of calculating taxable income, the amount and characteristics of the invested capital as well as the relatiisidepmeteria. At

present, subject to a later in depth study regarding the evolution of the IFRS accounting practices, EBITDA is definetbhiniG&eoup

as the Profit/Loss gross of the depreciation and amortization, respectively, of tangible and intangible assgisnsland writedowns,

financial expenses and income and income taxes.

b 8 The operating profit (EBIT) is defined by the Cremonini Group as the Profit/Loss for the year gross of financial chaigesraad
norn-recurring items and income taxes.
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Net Consolidated Debt?

(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 30.09.201° 30.06.201° 31.12.201¢
Payables to banks, bonds and other financial institutions

- due within 12 months (426,440 (429,156 (404,122 (362,292
- due between 1 and 5 years (484,192 (484,364 (490,033 (497,863
- due beyond 5 years (69,639; (76,124, (78,534 (93,719,
:I'ota.ll p.ayables to banks, bonds and other financial (980,271 (989,644 (972,689 (953,874
institutions

Liquidity

- cash and cash equivalents 269,592 270,947 236,03¢ 238,73C
- other financial assets 8,728 7,992 3,426 9,003
Total liquidity 278,321 278,93¢ 239,46¢ 247,738
Total net debt (701,950; (710,705; (733,224 (706,141,

The Group6s net debt7 amosnted to701P nilidhewre dowreby 4.22rllibn euro
comparedto 7061 millioneuro asat 31 December 208.

The improvement compared to 31 December 2016 was determined bythexsgo cas h generati on o
operations that more than compensated thash outfor ordinary investments of 125.1 million, the distribution

of dividends to the market, parent companies, and minorities of 30.6 million and debt relating to acquiditions o

3.2 million euro.

c 0 The Net Debt, utilized as a financial indicator of the indebtedness, is shown as a summary of the following positive taved nega
components of the Statement of Assets and Liabilities purstmr@ONSOB communication no. 6064293 of 28 July 2006. Positive
components: cash and cash equivalents; current securities due for saletesinorfinancial receivables; derivative instruments. Negative
components: due to banks; due to other financiers,ilEgsind factoring companies; derivative instruments and bonds.
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Financial results by sector of activity

The Group operates within the food sector, with the position of market leader in three macro business areas:

- production;

- distribution;

- catering.

The Parent Company, both directly and indirectly through its subsidiaries, provides support to the operational
sectors, mainly services in the financial, corporate and fiscal, human resource and IT system sectors.

Breakdown of revenues by sector

(Euro/000) Year 2017 Year 2016 Change Change %
total value
Production
Net revenues 1,887,54¢ 1,686,01¢ 201,527 11.95
Intercompany revenue 80,67¢ 74,73C
Total revenues 1,968,22¢ 1,760,74¢ 207,47¢ 11.78
Gross operating margin 109,101 119,09t (9,994, (8.39
Amortization, depreciation and write-downs (56,809 (52,712 (4,097, 7.77
Operating profit (loss) 52,292 66,38< (14,091 (21.23
Distribution
Net revenues 1,568,67¢ 1,501,61¢ 67,06C 4.47
Intercompany revenue 55,88¢ 42,784
Total revenues 1,624,55¢ 1,544,397 80,162 5.19
Gross operating margin 115,99z 110,95¢ 5,037 4.54
Amortization, depreciation and write-downs (18,213 (17,455, (758) 4.34
Operating profit (loss) 97,77¢ 93,50C 4,279 4.58
Catering
Net revenues 572,967 511,267 61,70C 12.07
Intercompany revenue 364 405
Total revenues 573,331 511,67z 61,65¢ 12.0§
Gross operating margin 47,954 42,44¢ 5,505 12.97
Amortization, depreciation and write-downs (31,607, (24,738, (6,869, 27.71
Operating profit (loss) 16,347 17,711 (1,364, (7.70
Holding company property and centralized activities
Net revenues 2,061 2,569 (508) (19.77
Intercompany revenue 9,740 9,208
Total revenues 11,801 11,777 24 0.20
Gross operating margin (1,416) (1,929, 513 (26.59
Amortization, depreciation and write-downs (3,362, (2,976, (386) 12.97
Operating profit (loss) (4,778 (4,905) 127 (2.59
Consolidation adjustment
Total revenues (146,668, (127,128,
Gross operating margin [ 0
Amortization, depreciation and write-downs [ 0
Operating profit (loss) 0 0
Total
Total revenues 4,031,24¢ 3,701,46¢ 329,78( 8.91
Gross operating margin 271,631 270,57 1,061 0.39
Amortization, depreciation and write-downs (109,991 (97,881, (12,110 12.37
Operating profit (loss) 161,64( 172,68¢ (11,049 (6.40
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TheG oupds tot al revenues, i f 6, areyp bhyr329.8 milloh duto. Intdétal,
production wasup by the 2075 million euro, distribution increased by80.2 million, and cateringis up by61.7
million.

The consolidated gross opdiag marginwas up byl million euro with the production down by 10.0 million,
distribution was up b¥.0 million euro andcateringwasup by 5.5 million.

Lastly, the consolidad operatingincomewas down by 11.0 million euro, with production decreasingf 14.1
million, distributionup by4.3 million, and cateringown by 1.4 million.

Breakdown of revenues from sales and services by geographic area

Year 2017 - (Euro/000)

Production % Distribution % Catering % Other % Total %
Italy 1,107,55: s59.4 1,420,22: 928 455,89¢ 80.6 1,413 931 2,985,08¢ 75.4
European Union 268,25( 14.4 66,307 4.3 103,742 184 104 6.9 438,40< 11.0
Extra-EU countries 488,292 26.2 43,81€ 29 5,844 10 - - 537,952 136
Total 1,864,09¢ 100.0 1,530,34¢ 100.0 565,48< 100.0 1,517 100.0 3,961,43¢ 100.0
Year 2016 - (Euro/000)

Production % Distribution % Catering % Other % Total %
Italy 958,78E 574 1,364,08¢ 93.4 393,11(C 782 1,718 100.0 2,717,70¢ 748
European Union 226,96€ 136 59,327 a1 106,28( 211 - 392,57% 108
Extra-EU countries 483,29¢ 200 36,757 25 3,293 o7 - 523,34¢ 144
Total 1,669,05( 100.0 1,460,17: 100.0 502,68% 100.0 1,718 100.0 3,633,62¢ 100.0

Consolidated Balance Sheet structure by business sector

As at31 December 2017 P roduction Distibution Caterina  Holdina and Intercompany Total
centralized eliminations
(E uro/000) activies
Intangible assets 36,258 143,367 48,388 64 - 228,077
Tangible assets 587,30E 62,012 244,87¢ 83,779 - 977,97¢
E quity investments and other financial assets 28,756 1,589 1,745 1,083 - 33,173
Total fixed assets i 652,31¢ 206,968 295,012 84,926 0  1,239,22t
Trade networking capital
- Trade receivables 178,134 364,42C 33,427 10,155 (28,636’ 557,50C
- Inventories 280,88C 147,452 13,213 1 208 441,75¢E
- Trade payables 5 (228.427' (279.790' (117,706' (8,465]' 29,392 (604,996
Total trade and net working capital 230,587 232,08¢ (71,066 1,691 964 394,25¢
Othercumentassets 22,729 47,613 21,149 3,482 (4,521 90,452
Other curment liabiliie s s (45,046" (13,111" (36,888" (5,339]' 3,557 (96,827
Networking capital 208,27C 266,58¢% (86,805 (166) 0 387,884
Staff Severance Indemnity Provision and oth (63,438 (24,786, (9,466) 8,144 - (89,546
m/l-term provisions
Netinvested capital 797,151 448,767 198,741 92,904 0 1,537,56%

same

p
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CONSOLIDATED FIN STATEM

As at31 December 2016 P roduction Distibution Caterina  Holdina and Intercompany Total
centalized eliminations
(E uro/000) activites
Intangible assets 34,579 136,057 49,784 35 - 220,45¢
Tangible assets 588,022 62,815 205,682 84,961 - 941,48C
E quity investments and otherfinancial assets 16,944' 2,077' 1,776' 1,126' - 21,923
Total fixed assets 639,54¢ 200,94¢ 257,247 86,122 0  1,183,85¢
Trade networking capital
- Trade receivables 189,52¢ 362,39¢ 30,849 3,704 (23,663’ 562,817
- Inventories 252,461 142,27¢ 12,276 1 68 407,084
- Trade payables (212.700' (269,733' (95,935" (6,930}' 24,488' (560,810
Total trade and networking capital 229,28¢ 234,944 (52,810, (3,225 893 409,091
Othercumentassets 25,979 52,086 19,957 4,711 (6,250, 96,483
Other curentliabiliies (45,309" (14,019" (32,830" (7,361]' 5,357’ (94,162
Networking capital 209,95¢ 273,011 (65,683, (5,875, 0 411,412
Staff Severance Indemnity Provision and oth (65,981 (25,076 (9,198) 6,253 _ (94,002
m/l-term provisions ’ ’ '
Netinvested capital 783,522 448,884 182,361 86,500 0  1,501,26¢
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ConsolidatedNet Debt broken down bysector

As at 31 December 2017 Production Distribution Catering Holding and Total
(Euro/000) centraliz. activities

Payables to banks, bonds and other financial institutions

- due within 12 months (207,320 (120,169 (36,822, (62,129 (426,440
- due between 1 and 5 years (194,983 (168,207 (94,413 (26,589, (484,192
- due beyond 5 years (2,212) (27,487, (39,940 0 (69,639
Total payables to banks, bonds and other financial institutions (404,515 (315,863, (171,175, (88,718, (980,271
Liquidity

- cash and cash equivalents 67,084 156,28¢ 46,042 182 269,592
- other financial assets 6,898 709 971 150 8,728
Total liquidity 73,982 156,994 47,013 332 278,321
Securitization and internal treasury current accounts 2,487 1,258 1,962 (5,707) 0
Total net debt (328,046, (157,611; (122,200 (94,093, (701,950,
As at 31 December 2016 Production Distribution Caterinc Holding and Total
(Euro/000) centraliz. activities

Payables to banks, bonds and other financial institutions

- due within 12 months (146,785 (118,559 (36,315, (60,633, (362,292
- due between 1 and 5 years (232,511 (145,697 (78,013, (41,642, (497,863
- due beyond 5 years (22,456, (31,226, (39,432, (605) (93,719
Total payables to banks, bonds and other financial institutions (401,752; (295,482, (153,760 (102,880, (953,874
Liquidity

- cash and cash equivalents 76,881 114,16C 37,251 10,43¢€ 238,73(
- other financial assets 6,354 919 1,730 - 9,003
Total liquidity 83,235 115,07¢ 38,981 10,438  247,73¢
Securitization and internal treasury current accounts 2,893 2,930 2,081 (7,904) 0
Total net debt (315,624; (177,473; (112,698, (100,346, (706,141,

10
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The operating sectors of the Group

Production

This sector includes the following areas of business and companies within the scope of consolidation:

Company
a) Beef and meatbased products

Business carried out

INALCA S.p.A.
Via Sjamberto n. 30/G Castelvetro di Modena (MO)

Slaughtering, processing and marketing of-bastd products.

GES.CAR. Sir.l.
Via Spilamberto n. 30/€Castelvetro di Modena (MO)

Service provision connected to beef processing and treatn
at the INALCA pdant in Ospedaletto Lodigiano.

GUARDAMIGLIO S.r.l.
Via Coppalati n. 52 Piacenza

Retailstoresmanagement but cher ds and ¢

SOC. AGR. CORTICELLA S.r.l.
Via Corticella n. 1% Spilamberto (MO)

Breeding cattle, both directly and by meamf agistmen
contracts.

SARA S.r.l.
Via Spilamberto n. 30/€Castelvetro di Modena (MO)

Recovery and processing of agricultural and livestock waste

INALCA ANGOLA Ltda.
Rua Deolinda Rodrigues n. 568uanda Angola

Food marketing.

INALCA ALGERIE.ar.l.
08, Rue Cherif HamaniAlgiersd Algeria

Food marketing.

INTER INALCA ANGOLA Ltda.
Rua Major Kayangulo n. 5804uanda Angola

Food marketing.

INALCA KINSHASA S.p.r.l.
Kinshasa 1l1eme Rue Limete Industriel n. 112, Lim€g
(Kinshasa) Democraic Republic of Congo

Food marketing.

INALCA EURASIA HOLDINGS GESMBH
Palais Kinsky, Freyung 4 Vienna

Control of all companies currently developed by INAL(
S.p.A. in Russia.

KASKAD OOO L.l.c.
Via Vostochnaya n. 5, Odinzovbl¢scow) - Russia

Real estate swices.

MARR RUSSIA L.l.c.
Via Vostochnaya n. 5, Odinzovbl¢scow) - Russia

Food marketing.

INALCA BRAZZAVILLE S.ar.l.
64, Avenue de France Pafoto (Brazzaville)
Republic of Congo

Food marketing.

ZAKLADY MIESNE SOCH. S.p.z.0.0. L.l.c.

AlL.Jana PawGa I&lPoland 80, War

Dormant.

TECNO-STAR DUE S.r.l.
Via Modena n. 58 Castelvetro di Modena (MO)

Design of buildings and plants, management of maintenang
restructuring activities.

REALBEEF S.r.l.
Contrada Tierzid Flumeri (AV)

Slaghtering, processing and marketing of bea$ed products.

FIORANI & C S.p.A.
Via Coppalati n.52 Piacenza

Processing and marketing of bdsfsed products.

INDUSTRIA AIMENTAR CARNES DBMOCAMBIQUE
Lda 8 Avenida de Mocambique Km 9.5 Barrio Zimpe
Distretto 5- Maputo- Mozambique

Food marketing.

BELL CARNI S.r.l.
Via Eridania n. 58 Stienta (Rovigo)

Slaughtering, processing and marketing of-bastd products.

ORENBEEF LLC
Via Pionerskaya @ Orenburg- Russia

Slaughtering, processing and marketindbeéfbased product
in Orenburg.

INALCA FOOD AND BEVERAGE S.r.l.
ViaModenan. 53 - Castelvetro di Modena (MO)

Company that markets and distributes food products al
drinks.

DISPAL Cl S.a.r.l.
04 BP Abidjan 08 Plateau Boulevard Cardelvory Coast

A company operating in the Ivory Coast and marketing f
products in general.

IR& BHOLDING INC
1679 South Dupont Highway, Suite 100, DodedS

Subholding controlling all activities developed by Inalca Fog
Beverage in the USA.

11
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INALCA FOOD & BEVERAGEORTH AMERICA LLC
5 West, 19° Street, 10th Floor, 10011 New York

Company whose purpose is to distribute Italian food prody
in the USA.

INALCA FOOD & BEVERAGH hailand)LTD
Amphur no.333/2 Moo 9 Tambol Bang@arhe Bagplee
SamutprakarnThailand

Company whose purpose is to distribute Italian food produ
in Thailand

PARMA FRANCE S.AS.
13 rue Claude Chappe, Le Parc de Crécy 69370 Bidier
au Mont d'or

Subholding of the Parma France Group that markets livest
in France.

PARMA SERV S.R.L.
Viale Solferino 1-1Parma

Markets livestock in Italy provides services to Parma France
the | atterds subsidiaries.

PARMA TURC S.A.S.
Ambronayd France

Markets livestock in France.

PARMA LACOMBE S.AS.
La Trémloliere 5600 St Santin de Mauf$-rance

Markets livestock in France.

PARMAUBRAC S.A.S.
Le Bourg 48720 MalbouzonFrance

Markets livestock in France.

INALCA FOOD & BEVERAGE HONG KONG LTD
2301, 23/F Chinachem Hollywood CentrelB ,Hollywood
Rd, Hong Kong

Company having the wholesale sale afidétn food products i
Hong Kong as its purpose.

INALCA FOOD & BEVERAGEABO VERDE LDA
Rua Amilca Cabra, 1° Andar do Predio Argo$Santa Mari
- llha do Sal Cape Verde

Company having the distribution of Italian food products
Cape Verde as its purpe.

VALTENNA CARNI S.R.L. iiquidation
Via della Costituente 1, Fermo

Company forming part of the Assofood S.p.A. business div
and placed in liquidation commencing from 3 June 2
Managed the rented Salerno factory.

ITAUS PTY LTD
90, Arthur Street - North Sidney- Australia

Company having the distribution of retail food products
Australia as its purpose.

FRESCO GOURMET PTY LTD
90, Arthur Street- North Sidney- Australia

Company having the distribution of food products
foodservice in Austilia as its purpose.

COMIT - COMERCIAL ITALIANA DE ALIMENTACION S.
Calle Peres Galdos s/n, San Isidr@ranadilla de Alboné
Tenerife

Company having the distribution of food products
foodservice in the Canary islands as its purpose.

HOSTERIA BUTARLLI S.L.
Calle Herraje s/n, nave 29, Poligono Industrial de Aring
Agiunes- Grand Canares

Company producing fresh pasta located in the Canary islan

TECALI S.L.

Camino Real de la Oratava 215,El OrtigaLa Laguna
Tenerife

Companyproducingmozzrella and fresh cheeskscated in the
Canary islands

MODENA CORPORATION PTY LTD

Mazars (NSW) PTY Ltd Level 12 90 Arthur Street Nol
Sidney NSW 2060

Company controlled by ITAUS used for a new wareho
construction

INALCA FOOD & BEVERAGE CHINA HOLDIG LTD

Unit 701, block 2 Golden Industri Bldg 16/26Kwai Tak
Street, Kwai Fong Hong Kong

A company that coordinates and has dulldings in som
businesses in China

TOP BEST INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LTD

Unit 701 2920, Block 1, Golden Industrial Bldg28 Kwai
Tak Street- Hong Kong Kwai Fong

Subsidiary company of IFB China Holding, conducts mozz
production in Hong Kong.

ZHONGSHAN INALCA FOOD & BEVERAGE CO LT
No. 431 Shaoshan North Road, Dongtang Ruifu, A A|
Hunan Province,508# Changsha Cityhua District

A company that distributes food products foodservice in the
Chinese Zhongshan territory.

BRIGHT VIEW TRADING HONG KONG LTD

Unit B, 13/F Wah Shing Centre, 5 Fung Yip Stre€hai
Wan, Hong Kong

A company that distributes food productso foodservicein
Hong Kong.

INALCA FOOD & BEVERAGE MALAYSIA HOLDIN
SDN BHD47B Jalan Batai Laut 5 Kawasan 16 Taman
41300- Klang SelangoerMahysa

A company that coordinates and has suidings in som
businesses in the Malaysian territory.

INALCA F&B SDN BHD

151 B, Jalan Batu Tiga Lama Taman RasKlaamg Selangq
Darul Ehasan Mahysa

A company that distributes food producte foodservicein the
Malaysian territory.
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ITALIA ALIMENTARI S.p.A.
Via Europa nl14, Busseto (PR)

Production and marketing of food products (cured meats
delicatessen).

MONTANA ALIMENTARI GMBH.
KirschsStrasse 20MunichdGermany

Marketing of food products (cured meats and delicatesser

CIBO SAPIENS S.r.l.
via Marconi 3, Gazoldoeagyli Ippoliti (MN)

A company incorporated with the objective of taki
advantage of the emerging trends in the field of f
consumption with a proteiftbased matrix different from

animalsorigin.

Breakdown of revenues by activity Year 2017 Year 201¢ cha. o
(Euro/000)

Beef and meat-based products 1,819,11¢ 1,639,59( 10.95
- intercompany revenues (17,214 (16,134

Net total 1,801,90¢ 1,623,45¢

Cured meats and gastronomy/snack food 171,03( 141,90 20.53
- intercompany revenues (4,712 (4,611,

Net total 166,31¢ 137,292

Total Production 1,968,22: 1,760,74¢ 11.78

The production sector revenues were 9682 million euro, up by 207.5 millioneuro compared to 1,760.7 in
2016 The gross operatingnargindecreased from119.1 million euro to 109.1 million, down by 10.0 million
euro andthe operating result dereased fron66.4 to 52.3 million euro down by 14.1 million.

The beef business

The no confidence picture that characterised most of 2016 and was already partially dispelled towards the end

of last year, left room for a general optimism climate that weisforced during the course of 2017 thanks to
the confirmation ofthe global growth rates. The international geopolitical pressuftestuatiors recorded on
the foreign exchange market amil price trend continue to significantly influence the markets in which the

sector operates however.

In this context, the meat segent recorded a growth in revenues thanks to the contribution of the Unipeg and

Assofood branches acqed on 1 May 2016, the positive final results in Russia and expansion of the

distribution of food products tofoodservice consequent to the acquisitionsiade by the Inalca Food &

Beverage S.r.l. subsidiary.

The margins were up in Europe and Russia despite the marginal contribution of the companies and business
branches acquired, for which thexpected synergies must still be fully developed. In Africag gharp
consumption crisis, related particularly to the fall in the crude oil price, impossibility of importing chiokan

into Angola and

a worsening competitive scenari

determined a drop in revenuesnd profitability, only partially offset by the positive results in Mozambique
following the coming on stream of the new distribution platform.

Noted amongst the significant events that occurred during the year are:

- the subscription to a share capitalciease of 400 thousand euro in Bonifiche Ferraresi, with the

objective of benefiting from the potential synergies deriving from the development of an integrated
chainoforeadi ng and

mar keting beef envisaged in the

- the subsidigy Inalca Food & Beverage S.r.l., dedicated to the distributiofinef food made in ltaly

worldwide, acquired 57.3% of Bright View Trading Hong Kong Ltd., a major player in the distribution

of Italian products in Hong Kong with revenues of over 7 milkamo;
- the startup of marketing of food products tdoodservicein Kazakistan (Almaty) through the Marr

Russia L.l.c. subsidiary;

- the TecneStar Due S.r.l. subsidiary concluded the acquisition of Bulgarelli Engineering & Trade S.r.l.,
dedicated to the techical development and implementation of slaughtering plants and refrigerating

cells. The transaction, which will permit reinforcing the technicablatyin the slaughtering, deboning
and portioning sectors, was effective commencing from 1 April;
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The folbwing were the investments of greater significance made during 2017:

- the continuation of construction of the slaughtering, deboning and hamburger production plant in
Poland;

- the opening of salepointsin Southern ltaly relating to managementtbé butcrery departments of
the Guardamiglio S.r.l. subsidiary;

- the acquisition of land in Odinzovo in Russia destined for the construction of a new plant for the
foodservicebusiness;

- expansion of the slaughtering factory in Orenburg (enlargement of the deboalhgtorage cells for
frozen products and rendering plant);

- the startup of the deepfrozen, precooked bacon production facility in Odinzovo (Russia);

- the purchase of specific plants for meat processing atRioeani & C. S.p.A. subsidiafgrocessing,
packaging and weight/pricing lines).

Cured meats and snacks sector

The consumption of cured meats registered, contrary to the recent financial years, a slight rise of 2.7% in value
and 1.4% in quantity in 2017, (source: 7/2018 Ismea report on Nielserdjgu

Also in the last financial year, the increasingly pronounced propensity of consumers to find the "best price" that

led to the success of the "Discount” formula, and promptatescaleretailers to offer their own "lowest

price" productlineswasconfirmed The largescale retail trade grew by 1.4% (food discount by 3.2%) in 2017,
against a retreat of the small independent shops of
2018).

In terms of raw materials, 2017 was a year of higbrage prices. The year started with very high prices,
registered, starting from October, slight signs of a drop still far from covering the strong growth recorded in
2016.

In this scenario, the company, thanks to the good competitiveness ensured alsoifijuistrial structure, was
able to aggressivetieal withthe market, obtaining good results on both volumes (16% growth) and value (20%
growth).

The specific dynamics of the cured meats market were unchanged, confirming trends already seen for some
yea s i n the success eslicedppductsvta thedetlinedt eflceminercah litands anel
oOcut so.

The situation was still worse for snack products compared to the prior yésgause othe nature of the
products. These are goods with a highrvice content (of which the consumer price obviously takes account)
and | argethanvngeabl edé with similar products prepared b

Nevertheless, the company knew how to react both on the commercial and indugtont, concluding

important contracts with modern distribution and major operators in the diet and health sectors as well as
proposing new product |ines that have i mmediately met
These measures determined a growth in volurn&49.3% and 22.7% in revenues.

Today the company plays an absollgadership role in the bar ando.Re.Cachannels, organising its presence
through various distribution systems throughout the country. The competitors in the sector generally operate

in more restricted territorial areas offering a partial products range compared to that offered by Italia
Alimentari. Raw materials have had differentiated trends by product. Against a substantially stable performance
of bread and sauces, high cost levelsewecorded in fish and cheese products.

Improvements were made to the Busseto and Gazoldo buildings during the course of the financial year, in both
factories intervening on the rationalisation of the areasingtall new production lines and plants. lihe
Gazoldo factory interventions were also conducted on the external areas with the construction of paréing
ecological island and a goods handinga Overall the interventions on the fixed industrial structures of the

two factories amounted to atiut 2 million euro.

The company also invested about 6.4 million euro for the expansion of the bacon and pnadistion lines

at Gazoldo and seasoning of the cured meats and mortadella at Busseto.
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Distribution

This sector includes the following compas within the scope of consolidation:

Company Business carried out

Foodservice (distribiion to catering)

MARR S.p.A. Marketing and distribution of fresh, dried and frozen fq
Via Spagna n. 2Rimini products for foodservice operators.

MARRFOODSERVICE IBERICA SA.

Calle Goya n. 99, Madrid Spagna Non-operating company.

AS.CA. S.p.A. Marketing and distribution of fresh, dried and frozen fq
Via dell 8Acero n. 1/ A, Sa nproductsforfoodservice operators.

NEW CATERING S.r.l.

Via delldAcero n.1/A. Sat Distribution of foodstuff products to bars and fafstod outlets.

DE.AL. Sr.l. Marketing and distribution of fresh, dried and frozen fq
Via Tevere 125 Elice (PE) products for foodservice opettors.

SPECA ALIMENTARI S.r.l. Non-operative company, leased the business division to
Via Donne della Resistenza 40, Baveno (VB) MARR S.p.A. paremompany

The distribution sector showed revenues growth in the ZOinancial year from 5444 million euro to 1,624.6
million, an increase @0.2 million euro (+5.2%). The operating margin rose frotrd 1.0 to 116.0 million euro,
an increase 05.0 million euro (+4.5%). Lastly, the operating result amountedXa8 million euro compared to
935in 2016, an increase 04.3 million euro (+4.6%).

Specifically, saléesn t he 0Street Mar ket 6 category (restaurants
and those in the oONational Accountd categor wB¥dboperato
million Euro (1,2637 million in 205).

Interms of istomerc at egori es, sales to the 0Street Marketdé cat
groups or chainsyeached1,0487 million euro (983.9 million euro in 2016), with a contribution br the

consolidation of DE.AL S.r.l. (from last 4 April) aBgeca Alimentari S.r(effects from1 &nuary 201y that

amounted to 18 million euro.

As regards the trend of the reference end market of customers in the Street Market segment, on thebasis

themostr ecent survey by the Confcommercio Studies Office
2018) the temo Hot el s, meal s and out of home consumptionéd |
quantity) in 2017 of +2.3%-1.6% in 201® Febriwary 2018).

Sales to clients in the oONational Accountdé category (
to 286.8million Euro, (279.8 in 2016).

Sales to customers in the oO0Wholesaled cat endlionriry r each
2016.

Noted amongst the significant events that occurred during the year are:

- On 1st January 2017, the acquisition by MARR S.p.A. of 100% of the shareholding in the company
Speca Alimentari S.r.l. with headquarters in Baveno (VB), owner ofittnebaring thesame name
operating in the dodservice sector, became effective. By express agreement between the parties, the
active and passive effects deriving from the deed, underwritten on 30 December 2016, became
effective between the parties as d$t January 2017. The transaction involves a purchase price of 8.4
million Euro.From 1 January 2017, Speca Alimentari S.r.l. leasehiezpriseto the parent company
MARR S.p.A., which manages it through the new MARR Speca Alimentari distribution cente

- A project was launcheth mid Februanaimed at increasing the commercial offer in the Romagna area,
starting with the enhancement of the offer of fresh seafood products, opening a new operating
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structure at the historical premises in via Spagna inifitjrro which all the activities (specialising in the
commercialisation of fresh shellfish) previously carried out by the MARR Baldini distribution center

were contributed. A new distribution center has thus been created which will operate tjinothe
faclities in Riminiy i a Spagna) and Cesenatico, called O0OMARR
point for the offer of fresh seafood products in the important Romagna area, where MARR was

founded 45 years ago; 2017 is indeed the 45th anniversaneof tMARR®s bus.i ness acti v
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Catering

The business conducted in this sector, within the scope of consolidation, includes the following companies:

Company
a) On-board catering

Business carried out

CHEF EXPRESS S.@/Railway Division
Registerad and administrative office Via Modena n. 53
Castelvetro di Modena (MO)

Operating, under contract, oiboard railway catering

MOMENTUM SERVICES Ltd.

Parklands Court, n24 - Birmingham Great Park Rubel

Birmingham United Kingdom

Operating, under contret, onrboard catering on the train
connecting London with Paris and Brussels through
euro tunnel.

GLOBAL SERVICE LOGISTICS Sn.liquidation
Via Modena n. 53 Castelvetro di Modena (MO)

Non-operating company.

CREMONINI RESTAURATION S.a.s.
83, Rue du Charolais, ParésFrance

Operating, under contract, oioard catering inrurkey.

RAILREST S.A.
Frankrijkstraat, n. 95 Brussls - Belgium

Operating, under contract, ocdboard catering on Thaly
high speed trains connecting Belgium with Francelardd
and Germany.

CREMONINI CHEF IBERICA S.A.

Paseo de la Castellana 151bis, 1° Planta
Madrid- Spain

Provides strategic advisory services, market analysis
coordination in the orboard catering segment. Alg
operates in the trading of food products.

CHEF EXPRESS UK LTD.
1-3 Union Street, Kingston Upon Thames, Surrey,
Londond United Kingdom

Holding of equity investments prevalently operating in
on-board sector.

LOUNGE SERVICES S.a.s
91, Rue du Faubourg Saldbnoré 8 Paris- France

Management, uter concession, of the business lounge
the Eurostar waiting rooms in Paris.

AVIRAIL ITALIA S.r.In lig.
Via Modena n. 53, Castelvetro di Modena (MO)

Management of the logisticalrsies for the trains in Italy.

CHEF EXPRESS EURASIA
5, Vostochnga Str.Odintzovo, Mosaw - Russia

Company not yet operational, incorporated with tf
objective of managing the catering services in the nat
and international Russian railway market.

CHEF ESPRESS TREN IC HIZMENONIM SIRKETI A.S.

Londra Asfalti nrdd3 Sefakoi Postakodu 34295 Kucukcekm

Istanbul Turkey

Non-operating company.

ALLIANCE EXPRESS LLC
5, Vostochnaya Str.Odintzovo, Maswv - Russia

Operating, under contract, obhoard catering onsome
longdistance trains in Russia.

b) ConcessiorCatering

CHEF EXPRESS S.@AConcessiorDivision
Via Modena n. 53, Castelvetro di Modena (MO)

Operator in the commercial concession catering ar
Specifically, catering is managed in the premises of
Italian railway stations, airports and hospitals aedvise
areas of the motorway network

GABF HOLDING Limited
90a Tooley Street Londod United Kingdom

Sales obage/sn London and Ireland.

¢) Commercial Catering

ROADHOUSES.p.A.
Via Modena n. 53, Castelvetro di Modena (MO)

Operating a chain afestaurantsn Italy.

ROADHOUSE GRILL ROMA S.r.l.
Via Modena n. 53, Castelvetro di Modena (MO)

Operating a chain afestaurantsn Rome.

PRINCEPS S.a.s.
22 rue SainfAugustin 75002 ParisFrance

Non-operating company.
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Breakdown of revenues by activity Year 2017 Year 201¢ Cha. %
(Euro/000)

On-board catering 104,02t 103,23: 0.77
- intercompany revenues - -

Net total 104,02¢ 103,232 0.77
Motorway catering 317,04C 288,99( 9.71
- intercompany revenues - -

Net total 317,04C 288,99C 9.71
Commercial catering 152,26¢€ 119,44¢ 27.47
- intercompany revenues - -

Net total 152,26€ 119,44¢ 27.47
Total Catering 573,331 511,672 12.05

The catering sector showedn increasen revenues fronb117 million euro to 573.3 million euro in 2017, an
increaseof 61.7 million euro (+12.1%). The gross operating margimcreasedfrom 42.4 million euro to 48.0
million euro with an increase of5.6 million euro (+13.0%) and tle opeating result that amounted td6.3
million euro wasdown by 1.4 million euro comparedto 17.7 million euro in 2016.

The improvement in the results is attributable to the concession catering and commercial segments that
benefited from the full oper&n of the investmentsnade inthe past and theon-goingcommercial expansion
subsequent to the opening of the new Roadhouse steakhouses.

The catering sector conducts its business in three segments:

- On-board catering operating orboard train catering s@ices and logistical activities in the railway
stations;

- Concession cateringoperating, in concession, catering services in railway stations, airports and
motorway network service stations;

- Commercial cateringoper ating the O0RoadhroasteauRaxnttasuyr an@ al aby
0Crazy Fishbo

On-board catering

Noted amongst the significant events that occurred during the yeathis:signing by Railrest S.a. of the
extension of the contract for operating some catering servicesboard the 7halyshigh-speed trains
connecting France, Belgium, Germany and The Netherlands for a further three years.

Concessiorratering

Noted amongst the significant events that took place in the period are:

- the commencement of catering services by Chef Express Smp.theiservice areas of Versilia Est
(LU), San Giacomo Nord (BS), San Giacomo Sud (BS), Gonars Nord (UD), and Adda Nord (BG) and
disposal of the Sesia Ovest (VC), Garda Est (VR) and Bazzera Nord (VE) service areas;

- the opening of new catering premises witlthe Cremona hospital, Catullof VeronaVillafranca and
BariPalese airports, Milan Rogoredo and Florence Santa Maria Novella railway stations, within the
food court of the new MilarCityLife Shopping District anthe Bologna Interport, one of the large
logistical platforms in Europe, and the termination of business within the Parma airport;

- the opening of new catering premises within the Fiumicino and Ciampino airports, which the company
was awarded during tenders during 2016;

- acquisition of thedo Jui cebar 6 b coacem of healthynfood darsn winnesf the 2017
Foodservice Award in the Green Appeal category

- the completion of the refurbishment of the large motorway service area at the bridge. Novara Nord
and Sud (A4 Milad Turin), a hisoric symbol of the motorway catering in our country. The renovated
premises, with a commercial area of almost 1,700, i distinguished by a very comprehensive offer,
with seven different proposals amongst which a food and retail formaging betweenurban

contexts and major partnerships: the pairing of
OLavazza Etiguabéd b murmec ad &It ekament erti lae ((@d@él i cat
OPomodoro&Mozzarellad pizzeri a,ortehdée mdalruki ecte bfaorrémahtes
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- theopeningpf the new O66Att i mi by Heinz Beckdd restaur a
dock in Fiumicino Airport, involving Heinz Beck, a msttirred chef of international fame, offering a
significant restaurant experiea of very high level, including to those who travel and have limited
time; A new format that, amongst other things, h e
the 2017 Foodservice Award ceremony;

- the opening of the reQpemtBidstOrAnd oconreédtoedCobpnGlaef
1 of the Fiumicino airport that has added an open food formula to &hka carte menu to ensure
dynamicity and flexibility of the offer based on the time that travellers departing for Schengen
destinations hve.

Commercial Catering

We note amongsthe significant events in 201

the opening of new biaRdrestdunantsirs @arbdgyeate t(Ml)uAn@gnated(BG),
Pistoia, Ancona, Sesto San Giovanni (Ml), Prato, Fidenza (PR), Orio al SeridR@t),Battistini,
Siena, Modena, Conegliano (TV), Novara, Lentate sul Seveso (MB), San Giovanni in Lupatoto (VR), San
Giuliano Milanes (M), Grosseto, Turin, Milan, within the ne@tyLife Shopping District food court
andMontano Lucino (CO)taking thenumber of premises opened tdate in Italy by the chain to 21
and thesigning of additional contracts to open new Roadhouse Grill brand premidessanzano sul
Garda (BS), Roma Ardeatina, Sesto Fiorentino (FI), Roma, Vigevano (PV), Pisa, Capriolo (BS),
Alessandria, Rivoli (TO), Arezzo, Chivasso (T&ddMontecchio Maggiore (VI);
the launch by Roadhouse of two new catering formats:
1T oCalavera Fresh Mexo, the menu of which i s i
quality ingredients. The debut of thhnew format took place in the last month of November
within the new MilanCityLife Shopping District, théargest urban shopping centre in Italy.
Contracts were also signed for the opening o
Serravalle Scrivia (ALhd Rome;
T the other is o0Crazy Fishodé a fast food cateri
openings were in Modena and Rome, and contracts were signed for the opening of new
premises in Serravalle Scrivia (AL) and Rome.

ORoadhouse Rhedistdburaanmdt 6i ni st he ©O0Restaurantsf6d categ
Experience quality offered to its customers and t
Chaindd category for the quality of the service e
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Centralized activities (holding company, property and services)

The activities carried out in this area are mainly connected to the provision of specialised services supporting
the operating sectors and management of real estate assets, and includelltveing companies and/or

divisions:

Company Business carried out

CREMONINI S.p.A Provides support services to Group companies in the ared

. d 'pé C | di Mod o finance, insurance, legal and management/administratialso
Via Modena n. 53, Castelvetro di Modena (MO) manages the Groupds real es
GLOBAL SERVICE S.r.l. Personnel servicegprocessing and administrative managen
Via Modena n. 53 Castelvetro di Modena (MO) of payrolls.
INTERJET Sur.l. . .

. . Air transport services (P.P.T
Via Belvedere n. 23Castelvetro di Modena (MO) I P ! ( )

2C



DIRECTORSREPORT
|

Relationships with unconsolidated subsidiaries, associated, controlling and related companies

With reference to the Gr7fingndakyear, avithaundorsalidated fulssidiariesn t h e
associated, contiing and related companies on market conditions, it should be noted that these transactions
affected the types of costs and revenues summarised in the following ghtement of assets and liabilities

and income statement data are shown in specificeaen to the notes to the consolidated financial statements

relating to each company, broken down by type of relationship. It should further be noted that relationships

with related companies (i.e., companies referable to the controlling shareholder astleuhe Cremonini

Groupds scope of consolidation) are overall, insignif
Controlli Related
(Euro/000) ontro Ir_‘lg Subsidiaries Associated companies e e-
companies companies
Revenues
Trade income - 2,340 9,446 3,598
Other income 9 160 248 13
Total revenues 9 2,500 9,694 3,611
Costs
Trade expense - 54 772 7,786
Other expense 85) 374 1,474 681
Total costs 35 428 2,246 8,467

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables 15 2,922 1,391 639
Other receivables - 14,222 2,950 574
Total loans and receivables 15 17,145 4,341 1,213

Loans and payables

Trade payables 35 79 412 45
Other payables 8,036 - 350 -
Total loans and payables 8,071 79 762 45

As far as relationships with both related and controlling companies are concerned, the breakdown is as follows:

(Euro/000) Trade Other Total

Receivables Payables Receivables Payables  Receivables Payables
Related and controlling companies:
A.GM.Surl - 20 220 - 220 20
Cremofin S.r.l. (parent company) 15 35 - 8,036 15 8,071
LLC Soyuz 208 354 - 562 -
TreErre Food S.r.l. 431 - - - 431 -
Twoford Holdings Ltd - 25 - - - 25
Total related and controlling 654 80 574 8,036 1,228 8,116
(Euro/000) Trade Other Total

Revenues Costs Revenues Costs Revenues Costs
Related and controlling companies:
A.G.M.Sr.l. - 13 - - - 13
Cremofin S.r.l. (parent company) - - 9 85| 9 35
Le Cupole S.r.l. - 668 4 - 4 668
LLC Soyuz 1,962 - 9 - 1,971 -
Namsov Fishing Enterprises Ltd - 7,786 - - = 7,786
TreErre Food S.r.l. 1,636 - - - 1,636 =
Total related and controlling 3,598 8,467 22 35 3,620 8,502

The payables of 668 thousaedro to Le Cupole refer tothe rental of an industrial property, in Rimini, used
for some time by MARR.
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Investments
During the 207 financial year the totalfadhe net investments made wag5.1 million euro.

Shown below is the schedule of the net change in-nomrent tangible ad intangible assets for the entire 201
financial year.

Net investments broken down by sector

(Euro/000) Production  Distribution Catering Others Total
Intangibles
Patents and intellectual property rights 322 340 586 - 1,248
Patents and intellectual property rights - - 16 - 16
Concessions, licenses, trademarks and similar rights 2 - 820 28 850
Intangible assets under development and advances 408 562 1,047 17 2,034
Other intangible assets 323 - 75 - 398
Total intangible assets 1,055 902 2,544 45 4,546
Tangibles
Land and buildings 5,638 824 24,01E 637 31,114
Plant and machinery 18,52¢ 1,956 11,791 647 32,923
Industrial and business equipment 2,131 307 1,460 - 3,898
Other tangible assets 3,761 1,190 10,021 329 15,301
Tangible assets under development and advances 20,331 272 16,152 571 37,327
Total tangible assets 50,390 4,549 63,440 2,184 120,563
Total 51,445 5,451 65,984 2,229 125,10¢

More detailed information on the investments made during the year can be found in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Research and dewment
The main research and development activities, brellewn by sector, were as follows:
Beef Segment

In 2017 INALCA developed the following research currents:

I analysis of possible technologies to reduce thie burdenin its semifinished and finleed products
based on microbiological agents able to improve the dielfof the products in protective
atmosphere without using chemical additives;

i training and technological transfer activities on the analysis of sustainability in the beef sectoe and t
related sustainable breeding techniques;

9 identification of innovative industrial processes to recover some types of waste to reuse in internal

processes with physical and enzymatic systems;

use of organic products to replace chemical preservatives;

assasment of innovative technological solutions aimed at improving the management and performance
of recovery of water discharges;

1 study and fittingput advanced production lines in the portioned and processed products sector.

f
f

Cured meat products segment

The Research and Development activity that Italia Alimentari S.p.A. carried out durirngvsl conducted
using internal resources anthis is prevalently orientated to remarkable cured products development for
specific consumer categories in the followimgas:

- study and realisation of products for the vegaarket, in continuity with last year;
- study and realisation of new products in the cured meats area with specific formats and diet and nutritional
contents;

- study and realisation of new products in theacksarea

The strategy to develop toward specialised products for certain consumer categories has ventured as far as the
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study and subsequent implementation of sliced product formulations capable of satisfying vegetarian and vegan
food styles. In paitular, a new line of vegan tefand seitarbased products was created.

In this context, products and processes aimed at obtaining the "Halal product” certification on some cured
meats made at the Busseto facility with poultry coming from a guarantegplysahain were identified. They
join the range of beelbased "Halalproducts alreadgertified by the parent company INALCA S.p.A.

As for the traditional products, the company's efforts focussed on identifying totally national production chains
that alow the knowledge of the Italian nature of our products to increasingly increase and that enrich them
with greater information for consumers.

- Tools adopted in the production sector to support and fund research

1 INALCA takes part in the Foodbest platformhtough the University of Bologna. The Foodbest
platform unites the food excellences of the EU territory and is the main tool for gaining access to the
EU funds for research in the food sector granted by EI'European Institute of Innovation &
Technology(http://www.foodbest.eu/)

1 On the subject of research in the sustainability sector, INALCA started up the preliminary activities
for implementing the national strategic development plan called "National Technological Cluster" on
sustainability (Italian Mstry of Education, University and Research Decree prot. 257/RIC of
30/05/2012). It is the most important national tool for promoting strategic sustainability projects. The
project is aimed at building industrial plants in the sector of waste recovery sodliption of energy
from renewable sources.

Foodservice segment

The activity to develop and expand the product lines of its own brand continues.

Events ocarring after the end of the 20Afinancial year
The following events occurred after the finarigiaarend:
Production

- the continuation of the restructuring, rationalisation and integration process of the recently acquired
business branches of Unipeg and Assofood for the purpose of achieving the expected operating synergies;

- the subsidiary INALCAS.p.A. acquired in January, through a judicial auction at the Modena Court, an
industrial factory situated in Castelvetro di Modena for the purpose of arranging greater storage capacity
for frozen products and possibly to be destined for deboning pork, aaket in which the company is
increasingly orientated,;

- contacts were commenced for acquisition of an important player producing cured meats (specifically
sliced ham) that would complete the Italia Alimentari production chain;

- commencement of the construactin of the new distribution hub at Odinzovo (Russia);

- the acquisition of land situated in Luanda (Angola), on which to construct a large distribution centre for
the countryds fresh agricultural products in a Join

- the continuaion of construction of the slaughtering plant in Poland;

- commencement of a study to verify the feasibitifyconstruction ofa slaughterhouse in Kazakistan;

- the public Veterinary Health Department of the Ministry of Health issued an authorisation, femsign
of pork products destined for export to the United States, on 28 February 2018 to the subsidiary Italia
Alimentari S.p.A. Other than products already marketed in the USA, the subsidiary will be able to also
export cooked ham, mortadella and cureceats with the authorisation obtained

Catering

the commencement of catering services in the Service Areas of Fratta Nord (VE), Fratta Sud (VE), Agogna
Ovest (NO) and Agogna Est (NO);

the signing of the lease contract renewals of the 19 principal prentigéonging to the Centostazioni
network, with contract duration of 6 + 6 years, commencing from 1 Januarg;201
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opening of new Roadhouse brand restaurants in Bellinzago Novarese (NO) and Chivasso (TO) and
signature of a further agreement for opening efmnpremises in Erba (CO);
opening of the second o0Calavera Fresh Mex6 premises

Distribution

On 27 February 2018 DE.AE.S.r.l. Distribuzioni Alimentari acquired the remainii@o of Griglia Doc S.r.l.
for an amountof 190 thousand euro.

Followirg this transaction DE.AL. S. r. |. Distribuzioni Alimentari holds 100% thie share capitabf Griglia
Doc S.rl. and accordingly became the sole shareholder.

Business Outlook

The results achieved in the different sectors in 2&bnfirm the Group's god performance, although in the
presence of a market situation that is still weak.

The Group will be involved in consolidated the income results reached i8 281well by pursuing policies for
development on markets and products and for cost rationadtisatin the various operating segments.

Other information

With reference to the compliance provided for in the Personal Data Protection Code mentioned in Legislative
Decree 196/2003, it is noted that the policy document on security is updated baseteoimdications in the
relative regulation.

Atypical and/or unusual transactions

There were no atypical and/or unusual transactions during the course of the year that, for materiality, nature of
the counterparties, object of the transaction, method oftelenination of the transfer price and their
occurrence in proximity to the yeaend can raise doubts as to the correctness and completeness of these
financial statements, conflict of interest, safeguarding of corporate.

Reconciliation between the Pareto mpany s sharehol der s’ equity values
corresponding consolidated values

A reconciliation schedule between the shareholders' equity values of the Parent Company and the profit for
the year with t h eorrédpoonding drssolidatedvalees at 81 Dedersber7281given in the
annual report.

Main risks and uncertainties

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the conduct its business, such as those described in more detail in
the explanatory notes and whe these mean: market risk (being the combination of the currency risk for
foreign purchases of goods, interest rate and price risks), credit and liquidity risks.

Furthermore, considerthat the company, though operating in the food sector that is charé&dd by a
substantial stability, suffers from the general conditions of the economy and is therefore exposed, even though

to a lower extent compared to other sectors, to the uncertainsi®f the current macroeconomiclimate.

As already described in theports for previous financial years, Z0Was again characterised by volatility in the
financial markets and difficulty in access to credit, other than a consumption contraction; this has led the
management to maintain high attention to the dynamics otlitrmmanagement and cost curbing policies to
preserve the commercial margin.

As f ar as concerns the evolution of the Groupds fin
amongst which are, other than achievement of set targets in terms of comahevorking capital management,

the trend of the banking and monetary markets that are also influenced by the current economic situation.

As far as concerns the specific risks and uncertainties of the Cremonini and Group business, please refer to the
parag aph OProvicuiraresntf dri arbdad i ties and chargesdé in the
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Human resources

The Cremonini Group is aware that its collaborators make up an important resource for the company in order
to achieve the success and future of the sammpany. This is why it pays a large amount of attention to the
well-being of all collaborators, to the development of training programmes attentive to individual needs and to
fostering a positive corporate climate able to arouse a sense of belonging amdittoemt to meeting common
business objectives.

A total of 12,534 people work in the countries where the Group operates. The majority are in the European
Union (83.9%), followed by Russi®.p%) and Africa (3%). The headcount in 2681was insteadl11,432
collaborators.

The breakdown of the organizational structure based on professional designation 82asxécutives, 82
middle manager£,272 office staff an®,648workers or seasonal workers.

In addition to its employees, the Group also uses a langembe of salespeople and a network of haulage
contractors that collaborate with agency and service agreements.

During the year, sectebased refresher and training courses were held, and they also regarding the fields of
environmental safety, languages, cotapgiand occupational safety. Despite the period of serious economic
crisis, the company in no case whatsoever reduced its headcount and actually, in some cases, increased it,
notwithstanding a voluntary mobility operation.

Please note the agreements witthe university or secondary schools as well, which offered students
traineeships that in some cases turn into employment.

Environment

In the perspective of safeguarding and respecting the environment, the Group has always been careful about
the activities its companies carry out with reference to both its production processes and the optimization of
the resources available, with a constant commitment to reduce water and energy consumption and the
production of solid and liquid waste.

Catering

Chef Expess S.p.A. implements a constant sensitization policy of its operators regarding energy saving for the
purpose of promoting values of respect for the environment and safeguarding water and energy resources.

In connection with the environmental issues, Beoup abides by the legal provisions as regards the disposal of
special waste.

Production

The business social responsibility and sustainable development themes were further developed and integrated
during 20t hr ough | NALCA S. p. Asustanabditg repom, greparddiin conformityonith t h
the GRI& G4 guidelines, available at the following link: (http://www.inalca.it/Ribianciedi-sostenibilitd/).

The second edition of the sustainability report evidenced the development trajestorésults and objectives

of the Group in the field of economic, environmental and social sustainability. As better described in the
sustainability report, to which you are referred for more-depth analysis, INALCA has identified four main
pillars at the base of its policy in this field. These constitute of a sharing of the values and sustainability
principles with the agricultural world, construction of an integrated chain of production consistent with the
principles and practices of sustainable produtt systematic control of the environmental impacts and
consumption and realisation efistainabilityovernance tools.

Economic sustainabilifythe value generated and distributed by the Group

The value generated and distributed (EVG&D) representsfitis¢ basic indicator of value that the subsidiary

INALCA has created for its stakeholders. The value transferred outside is particularly significant in the food

sector, as an effect of the low addedlue of the production processes and the high incigdeot the raw
materials and personnel in the companyds incodme st at
G4 guideline, | NALCAS6s business is considerable and
distributed outside is paitularly high. On the basis of the data of the Z&lstainability report, the economic

value distributed is®.2% of the overall value generated by INALCA.
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Water resources

This is an area of intervention in which the Group concentrated its resourcgsnding water consumption.

The Group companies optimised the complete waste water purification and recovery cycle at its production
facilities using biological systems. The efficiency indicators of the water cycle are carefully monitored in the
environmenal management system.

To reduce water consumption, the companies have activated several tools to reuse water inside the
production cycle such as, for example, reutilisation of the waste water of the purification processes and
reduced consumption of watenithe slaughter operations.

Indeed, INALCA has for some time pursued objectives of improvement of the water resource management,
both on the consumption reduction front and an increase in the recovery and reutilisation index.

INALCA does not utilise wateoriginating from surface sources for its production sites, but rather water from
the aquifer that offers a greater guarantee in terms of quality. Over 90% of the water supply is furthermore
directly managed by INALCA, both for the phase of drawdown frohe aquifer and the distribution,
treatment, usage and purification phases. This integrated cycle ensures efficient management of the water
resource as the distribution network is particularly supervised and controlled.

The principal INALCA factories aregeiipped with modern purification systems that ensure high efficiencies.
Furthermore INALCA has for some time fixed discharge limits for the Castelvetro di Modena and Ospedaletto
Lodigiano factories that are more restrictive than those provided by the fgaavironmental authorisations.
Where the sector regulations so allow, INALCA recovers water from the purification procé&bss indicator

has improved by 7% during recent years, reaching about 88,000 mc/year of water recoveredused ie the
production circuits.

Enery

9 Production sector

The subsidiary INALCA has consolidated its energy production from renewable sources during the course of
2017 through the startup of new systems and purchase of existing ones. Indeed, INALCA today has an
organisedproduction system based on the various technologies: biogas production from anaerobic digestion,
endothermic combustion of biomasses and photovoltaic systems. In the sector of biogas production from
anaerobic digestion, in addition to the system situatetha Ospedaletto Lodigiano (LO) factory, the systems

at Pegognaga (MN) and Spilamberto (MO), managed by the subsidiary Soc. Agr. Corticella S. r. I. have been
added; the first two are supplied by ndaod slaughtering scrap, while the third prevalently Imestock

effluent. INALCA has a biomasses system in Pegognaga (MN) for energy enhancement from fats, through the
investee company Unitea S.r.l., while the Group has stanfedwo photovoltaic systems at the production
sites of Capo ddadiklCamPioenza ME) and Fi

Thanks to approval of the framework agreement by the Ministry of Agricultural Food Production and Forestry
Policies pursuant to arts. 10 and 11 of Legislative Decree no. 102 of 27 May 2005 regarding the construction of
agroenergychains, INALCA has obtained the maxim enhancement of the energy produced by this incentive
system and the consolidation of biomass fl ows origi

Consistently with the regulatory directives that incentivigee tbusiness regarding energy efficiency, INALCA
has enhanced its energy efficiency for some Group companies through the production of EBErgy
Efficiency Securities, admissible by the GSE (Electricity Services Operator).

The Inalca Group generate}924 TEE overall in 201, up compared to the prior year.

Against the expectation of the reduction of incentives on matters of electricity production from renewable
sources, INALCA is evaluating the opportunities provided by the new incentives framework, poelagiently

directed at renewabl e energies other than electricity

setup.

1 Catering sector

During the prior year the installation was completed, at all the sales outlets, of a voltage reducttemshat
permits electrical consumption savings and the project to construct photovoltaic systems that will permit
meeting part of the electricity needs that, when fully operative, will involve the majority of the premises
managed by Chef Express S.pral its subsidiary Roadhouse S.p.A.

The replacement of the lighting system with led technology is anticipated at premises being refurbished and
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new ones, as well as that of the heating and air conditioning with a high efficiency system with rotating
recovery. The new premises are constructed with a Building Automation system that permits removing
operational inefficiencies and saves on electrical consumption.

Furthermore, from 2016 all the companies will acquire an energy certificate for 100% renewalée sou
(Guarantee of Origin).

Life Cycle of Products and Environmental Disclosure

With regard to environmental sustainability and the policy to create an integrated and sustainable supply chain,
the subsidiary INALCA has achieved its first EPD (Environatdfrioduct Declaration) regarding the Montana
frozenhamburgers and commenced the study of another reference product, Montana brand canned meat.

The EPD system is undoubtedly one of the most qualified objective technical references verified by thesd parti
for providing clear and truthful information on the actual impacts and consumption of the food products.

These techniques make it possible to identify the potential of environmental improvement of the products at
various points of their life cycle, teelect the significant environmental performance indicators and to define
environmental marketing strategies. It is an activity of growing interest for targeted company communication
actions or for supporting similar initiatives of its customers, in battive and passive terms.

INALCA has also developed stable relations in the international platforms operating in the sustainability of the
beef sector

Through these research consortia, INALCA plans to acquire updated and scientifically sound infortoatio
improve the sustainability of its supply chain.

Waste production

The Group promotes the separated collection of waste and its maximum reuse. Some time ago the Group
perfected the separated collection operations to top 99% of the waste producedijtdras also developed a

plan aimed at improving the sustainability of the packaging products adopted, with particular reference to
reduction of the weight of the packing and improvement of their sustainability characteristics.

In relation to the producion sector, INALCA obtained an important environmental authorisation, through its
subsidiary Sara S.r.l. during the course of 2016 that allows functional updating and production strengthening of
its composting system to the most recent sector environmemégulations and, with this, the improvement of

the quality of the compost obtained and reused in agriculture in accordance with the principles of a circular
economy.

The company also developed a plan aimed at an improvement of the sustainability otklgipg products
adopted, with particular reference to:

reduction of the packaging weight;
use of recycled raw materials in the composition of the packaging utilised;
improvement in the recycling by end consumer.

The objective of waste reduction was raued above all through use of the anaerobic digestion systems that
allow substantial reductions of production of organic waste.

The availability of the second anaerobic digestion system at the INALCA Pegognaga (MN) factory placed in a
baricentric positim compared to the production systems of the central North will permit further
rationalisation of the internal logistics regarding the scrap angbrbglucts flows, specifically a substantial
reduction of transport numbers and the simultaneous improvementhaf travel saturation index, mainly
thanks to the functional integration with the similar system at Ospedaletto Lodigiano.
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The Parent Company Cremonini S.p.A.

Shown below are the summarised results of the Parent Company prepared in conformity witiA8iE-RS
International Accounting Standards.

Income statement of the Parent Company Cremonini S.p.A.

(Euro/000) Year 2017 Year 201¢ Chg. %
Total revenues 7,747 7,226 7.21
Changes in inventories of work in progress, semi-finished and finished goods - -
Value of production 7,747 7,226 7.21
Cost of production (5,435) (5,593)
Value added 2,312 1,633 n.a.
Personnel costs (2,459) (2,667)
Gross operating margif® (147) (1,034) (85.78)
Amortization, depreciation and write-downs (2,565) (2,159]
Operating incomé® (2,712) (3,193) (15.06)
Net financial income (charges) (1,397, (1,837,
Profit from ordinary activities (4,109) (5,030) n.a.
Net income (charges) from investments 22,79¢ 21,89¢
Net extraordinary financial income (charges) - -
Result before taxes 18,690 16,868 n.a.
Income taxes for the financial year 467 848
Net profit 19,157 17,716 n.a.

Statement of Assets and Liabilities of the Parent Company Cremonini S.p.A.

(Euro/000) Year 2017 Year 201€ Chg. %
Intangible assets 5 7

Tangible assets 82,912 83,292

Equity investments and other financial assets 256,78t 256,534

Total fixed assets 339,703 339,832 (0.04)
Trade net working capital

- Trade receivables 2,060 2,240

- Inventories - -

- Trade payables (6,908, (5,436)

Total trade net working capital (4,848) (3,1986)

Other current assets 16,46C 16,804

Other current liabilities (5,273, (7,263)

Net working capital 6,339 6,345 n.a.
Staff Severance Indemnity Provision and other m/l term provisions (4,419) (5,113)

Net invested capital 341,62¢ 341,065 0.16
Total Shareholders' Equity 251,472 238,817 5.30
Net medium/long-term debt 26,58¢ 42,247

Net short-term debt 63,561 60,001

Net debt 90,150 102,248 (11.83)
Net equity and net debt 341,623 341,065 0.16

a0 EBITDA(Gross operating margin) is an economic indicatot defined in the International Accounting Principles and the IEBREIDA

is the measurement used by the companyds management ERTDAi®ni tor an
an important indicator for measuring the compaperformance as it is not affected by the volatile nature of the effects of the various

criteria of calculating taxable income, the amount and characteristics of the invested capital as well as the relatiiaidepnéteria. At

present, subject to dater in depth study regarding the evolution of the IFRS accounting pradiB¢$DAIs defined by Cremonini as the

Profit/Loss gross of the depreciation or amortization of tangible and intangible assets, allocations atbwunise financial expensesda

income and income taxes.

b d The operating profit EBIT) is defined by Cremonini as the Profit/Loss for the year gross of financial charges and incosregurdng

items and income taxes.
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Net debt of the Parent Company Cremonini S.p(A.

(Euro/000) Year 2017 Year 201¢
Payables to banks, bonds and other financial institutions

- due within 12 months (46,861 (55,005
- due between 1 and 5 years (26,589, (41,642
- due beyond 5 years - (605)
Total payables to banks, bonds and other financial institutions (73,450) (97,252
Liquidity

- cash and cash equivalents 181 10,432
- other financial assets - -
Total liquidity 181 10,432
Securitization and internal treasury current accounts (16,881 (15,428,
Total net debt (90,150) (102,248,

Property services

Cremonini S.p.A. directly manages both its own property that is destined for civil use and property destined for
the catering division business.

The direct services

The transactions and services rendered, carried out mainly in relatidBrtmp companies, generally concern
the following operational areas:

Financemanagement of the centralized treasury and planningwétsred and medium to longerm loans;

Guarantees and advisory servicéssuing of guarantees (bank and insurancd)general assistance concerning
accounting, corporate law, taxes, legal and contractual services;

Fiscal consolidationas the consolidatgr Cremonini S.p.A. has adhered to Article 117 of the T.U.LLR.
(Consolidated Tax Code)gnataxiceo nproé p deasubhmdng MARR SpA e Onat
Chef Express S.p.A. and all the other companies controlled by tiem adhered to thisule.

¢ 0 The Net Debt, utilized as a financial indicator of the indebtedness, isrstas a summary of the following positive and negative
components of the Statement of Assets and Liabilities pursuant to CONSOB communication no. 6064293 of 28 July 2006. Positive
components: cash and cash equivalents; current securities due for saletesinorfinancial receivables; derivative instruments. Negative
components: due to banks; due to other financiers, leasing and factoring companies; derivative instruments and bonds.
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Relationships with Group and related companies

With particular referenceto its own activities and the specific financial and service relationships with the
subsidiaries and related companies it should be notec
costs and revenues summarised in the following table. Hoam@mic and financial data by type of relationship

for each company is indicated in the specific annexes to the explanatory notes. It should further be noted that

the relationships with related companies are of a minor entity.

(Euro/000) Parent Company Subsidiaries Associated companies Related companies
Revenues

Financial income - 11 -

Services - 5,762 11

Sales of goods - 8 -

Other income 5 24,124 143 -
Total revenues 5 29,905 154 -
Costs

Financial charges 35 67

Services - 409

Purchase of goods - 1 - -
Other charges - 1,137 - 2
Total costs 35 1,614 - 2
Receivables

Financial - 150 -

Trade 15 1,696 27

Other (a) - 241 - -
Total Receivables 15 2,087 27 -
Payables

Financial 8,036 8,995

Trade 35 6,006

Other (a) - 3,480 - -
Total Payables 8,071 18,481 - -

(a) mainlyrelevantto tax receivables and payable arose under the national tax consolidation

The powers granted to the Directors
The powers granted to the individual directors are those specified below:

- to the Chairman Mr. Luigi Cremonini, in addition to the legal represgotamentioned inArt. 21 of
the Bylaws, the necessary powers were conferred for the completion of acts relating to the
company's business, to be exercised with an individual signature, in connection with powers attributed
with a Board of Directors resoltion on 28 April 2017;

- to the Chief Executive Officer Vincenzo Cremonini, in addition to the legal representation mentioned
in Art.21 of the Bylaws, the necessary powers were conferred for the completion of acts relating to
the company's business, to beegcised with an individual signature, in connection with powers
attributed with a Board of Directors resolution 028 April 2017

An Executive Committee and a Gener al Manager have no
structure.

During thefinancial year, both the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officers used their powers only for the

normal management of the company's business, while significant transactions by typology, quality and value,
were submitted to the examination of the Board DBfrectors.

3C



DIRECTORSREPORT
|

*kkkkkhkkhk*k

Dear Shareholders,

Before concluding and requesting your decisions on this matter, we confirm that the draft financial statements
for the year ended on December 201 submitted for your examination and approval at thigeting, were
prepared in compliance with prevailing legislation.

Pl ease refer to the Directorsdéd Report for comment on
well as the Explanatory Notes for comments on individual items. We invite yoagdprove the financial
statements for the year ended on 31 December Z0tbgether with the Directors' Report.

Furthermore, weproposethe following allocation of the net profit for the year efuro 19,157,255.66 to the
ORetained earningsd reserve.

Caselvetro di Modena,  March2018

THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(Cav. Lav. Luigi Cremonini)
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Financial statements as at 31 December201

Statement ofFinancial Reition 8 Assets

(Euro) Note 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Non-current assets
Tangible assets 1 82,913,17: 83,291,90!
Goodwill _ N
Other intangible assets 2 4,956 6,844
Investments in subsidiaries and associated 3 255,751,22: 255,498,74.
Investments in other companies 4 1,031,09:¢ 1,033,29¢
Financial assets held for sale - -
Deferred tax assets 16 0 0
Other non-current assets 5 44,45¢ 3,061,20¢
Total non-current assets 339,744,90: 342,891,99:
Current assets
Inventories - -
Current financial receivables 6 391,437 433,511
relating to related parties 391,437 433,511
Current trade receivables 7 2,059,98: 2,240,12:
relating to related parties 1,738,506 1,914,911
Current tax assets 8 9,163,65( 8,709,44¢
Financial assets held for sale 4 4,389,85¢ 4,404,50:
Financial instruments / Derivatives = -
Cash and cash equivalents 9 181,721 10,431,82!
Other current assets 10 2,682,32( 255,39¢
relating to related parties o 0
Total current assets 18,868,96¢ 26,474,80¢
Total assets 358,613,86! 369,366,79°
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Financialtatements as at 31 December 2017

Statement of Financial Positietiiabilities

(Euro) Note 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital 11 67,073,93: 67,073,93.
Reserves 12 (41,188,910 (41,137,239
Retained earnings 206,431,05! 195,164,35:
Result for the period 19,157,25!t 17,716,12(
Total Shareholders' Equity 251,473,33: 238,817,16t
Non-current liabilities
Non-current financial payables 13 26,566,41! 44,746,61¢
relating to related parties 25,651 2,499,936
Financial instruments / Derivatives 48,325.0( -
Employee benefits 14 350,47¢ 353,997
Non-current provisions for risks and charges 15 151,53€ 245,22¢
Deferred tax liabilities 16 3,917,27" 4,514,40°
Other non-current liabilities 473 473
Total non-current liabilities 31,034,50: 49,860,72¢
Current liabilities
Current financial payables 17 67,347,13! 73,137,94¢
relating to related parties 20,485,772 18,133,173
Financial instruments / Derivatives - -
Current tax liabilities 18 493,89 575,01¢
Current trade liabilities 19 6,966,84¢ 5,488,42¢
relating to related parties 6,040,485 4,631,943
Other current liabilities 20 1,298,15¢ 1,487,51:
relating to related parties - -
Total current liabilities 76,106,03: 80,688,90¢
Total liabilities 358,613,86! 369,366,79°
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Financial statements as at 31 December201

Income statement

(Euro) Note 31 December 201’ 31 December 201!
Revenues 21 6,596,81¢ 5,865,72¢
relating to related parties 5,780,822 5,073,936
Other revenues 22 1,150,39¢ 1,360,04(
relating to related parties 791,615 556,244
Costs for purchases 23 (56,438 (53,349
relating to related parties (1,055) (1,696)
Other operating costs 24 (5,378,867 (5,539,778
relating to related parties (411,603) (334,124)
Personnel costs 25 (2,459,216 (2,667,092
Amortization and depreciation 26 (2,565,261 (2,144,079
Write-downs and provisions 26 0 (15,000
Revenues from equity investments 27 22,799,77t 21,897,58°
relating to related parties 22,731,453 21,393,896
Financial (Income)/Charges 28 (1,397,241 (1,836,517
relating to related parties (90,179) (20,809)
Result before taxes 18,689,96¢ 16,867,53¢
Income taxes 29 467,29( 848,584
Result for the period 19,157,25¢ 17,716,12(

Statement of comprehensive income

(Euro) 31 December 201" 31 December 201!
Result for the period 19,157,25¢ 17,716,12(
ltems to be reclassifiedto profit or loss in subsequen

periods:

Fair value valuation financial assets available for sale (14,644, (607,760
Efficacious part of profits/(losses) on cash flow hedge ]

. (48,325,

instruments

Tax effect 11,59¢€ 0
ltems not to be reclassifiedo profit or loss in subsequen

periods.

Actuarial gain (losses) (414) (4,218)
Tax effect 114 1,160
Comprehensive Income 19,105,58! 17,105,30:
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Cash flow statemen{indirect method)

(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Profit for the period 19,157 17,716
Amortization and depreciation 2,565 2,144
Impairment - -
Net change in other provisions and non-monetary income items 873 493
Net change in Staff Severance Provision (817) (712)
Changes in working capital

(Increase) decrease in trade receivables 180 (462)
(Increase) decrease in inventories - -
Increase (decrease) in trade payables 1,472 1,067
(Increase) decrease in other items of the working capital (1,646) (8,993)
Cash-flow from operating activities (A) 21,784 11,253
Net (investments) in intangible assets Q) (6)
Net (investments) in tangible assets (2,183) (1,802)
Net change in other non current assets (2,001) 54
Acquisition net of Cash and cash equivalent - -
Cash-flow from investment activities (B) (3,185) (1,754)
Increase (Decrease) in medium-long term borrowings (15,706 (38,343
Increase (Decrease) in medium-long term liabilities for derivatives 48 -
Increase (Decrease) in short-term borrowings (6,691) 39,017
Increase (Decrease) in short-term liabilites for derivatives 0 464
Cash-flow from distribution of dividends (6,449) -
Capital increase and other changes in equity (52) (611)
Cash flow from financing activities ( C) (28,850) 527
Cash Flow of the year (D=A+B+C) (10,251) 10,026
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (E) 10,432 406
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (F=D+E) 181 10,432
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Cremonini $.A. Financiabtatement as at 31 December 201

Notes to the financial statements

Form and content of the financial statements
The financial statements as at 31d@enber 20X were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
and measurement criteria laid down by the International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the Eurdpmian according to the
procedure referred to in Article 6 of the (EC) Regulation No. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and
Council of 19 July 2002, as adopted by Legislative Decree no. 38 of 28 February 2005, as amended, and
resolutions and ordinances prorgated in implementation drt. 9 of Legislative Decree 38/2005.

The financial statements for the year were authorised for publication by the Board of Directors meeting held
on 26 March2018.

The section otandadddhc ¢ 6o b msit nm @ toead acdountingstandardsadaptact in the
preparation of the Cremonini S.p.A. statement of assets and liabilities as at 31 DecemBBer 201

The Cremonini S.p.A. financial statements as at 31 Decembét ®ele prepared in accordance with the cost
method, withthe exception of the following postings in the statent of assets and liabilities

- land and buildings for which the fair wvalue as
provided for by IFRS 1;

- derivative contracts entered at the fair value.

For the purposes of comparison, the financi@tements as at 31 December 2DEhow the figures for the
financial year ended as at 31 December@01

The following classifications have been used:
- Statement of Assets and Liabilities for current/raurrent items;
- Income Statemenby nature;
- Cash flow statement (indirect method)

It is considered that these classifications provide information that better responds to representing the
companyds equity, economic and financi al situati on.

The functional and presntation currency is theuro.

With regard to the schedules contained in these financial statements, the Statement of Assets and Liabilities
and Income Statement are shown in unitseafro, while the schedule of the changes of the Shareholders'
Equity andCash Flow Statement are shown in thousandseafo. If not otherwise indicated, the tables
contained in these financial statements are shown in thousaneisrof

Changes in accounting standards
The new IFRS and IFRIC standards adopted by the EU,da tmmmencing from 1 January Z0&re shown

below with a brief description. The adoption of these revised standards and interpretations has not had effects
on the financial statements but has resulted, in some cases, in additional information only.
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New acounting standards, amendments and interpretations applicable Th 201

The measurement criteria used for preparing the 2@hancial statements do not depart from those used for
preparing the financial statements as at 31 Decembei62@1th the exceptionof the accounting standards,

amendments and interpretations listed below applicable from 1 January la@lwhich have not been applied in

the company's financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 12 Income taxes. The IASB clarifies how deferred tax assdéting to unrealised
losses on fair value debt instruments that give rise to the creation of deductible timing difference, when the
owner of the instrument expects to hold it up to due date, must be accounted for.

- Amendments to IAS 7 Cash Flow Stateent. The improvements regarding the information to be provided
relative to the changes in loans payable that derive both on financial flows and not from cash flows (for
example profits/losses on exchange rates). The Cash Flow Statement was updatedras eatg provided
with the reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of the liabilities deriving from loan assets, as
requested in paragraph 44A (please refer to Appendix 3 of these Notes).

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatiopplieable to future financial
statements

The standards and the interpretations that had already been issued but not yet in force at the time of drafting
these financial statements are presented below.

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. In July 2014, theBASsued the final version of the IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments which reflects all phases of the project in relation to financial instruments and replaces IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and measurement and all previous versions of IFRS @ndlarg st
introduces new requirements for the classification, measurement, impairmentedge accountingbRS
9 is effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 20h& Company does not expect
significant impacts from the application of thiandard.

- IFRS 15 (and subsequent clarifications issued on 12 April, 2RE)enue from contracts with customers.

The IFRS was issued in May 2014 and introduces a newstéige model that will apply to revenue from
contracts with customers. IFRS 15 prides for the recognition of revenue for an amount reflecting the
consideration that the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services to the customer.
This standard provides a more structured approach to the recognition and measuremeevefue,
replacing all current requirements in other IFRSs on revenue recognition. IFRS 15 is effective for financial
years beginning on 1 January, 2018 or later, with full or modified retrospective application. Early
application is allowed. Th€ompanydoes not expect significant impacts from the application of this
standard.

- IFRS1®&0On 9 November 2017 a further international acc
substitute IAS 17. was also approved, applicable from 1 JanuaryT2E 8tandrd provides a new lease
definition that will amend the accounting method for lessees who rent/lease a specific asset. Based on this
new standard, the company must evaluate for every agreement if it falls under a lease definition; lease is
defined as an agement for which, in exchange for a consideration, the lessee has the rights of controlling
the utilisation of a specific asset for a fixed term period exceeding twelve months. The company must
subsequently once again evaluate the agreement only in #& @aan amendment of the terms and
conditions of the original agreement. At the date of first application on initial booking of an asset which
represents the right to use pursuant to IFRS 16 (equal to the present value of the minimum future
obligatory intalments) and financial payable of an equal amount, will proceed., The right to use recorded
shall be the object of systematic amortisation over the residual term of the agreement. The financial
payable recorded will be reduced over time as a portion af thase instalments will be utilised for loan
servicing (in reduction of the capital portion with recording of the relative financial charge). The lease
and/or hire instalments shall no longer be recorded in the gross operating margin. In this regard it is
noted that a dedicated work group was instituted, to which the updating project was entrusted with the
ultimate purpose of quantifying the impacts of first application of this standard.

- Amendments to IFRS 2 Clarifications of the classification and measnent of share based payment
transactions. This amendment will apply from 1 January 2018 and deals with the following issues identified
by the IFRS Interpretation Committee: (i) accounting for a payment plan through defined benefit shares
that includes tle achievement of results; li) the payment based on shares in which the adjustment mode is
related to future events; (lii) payments based on shares settled net of tax deductions; Iv) the transition
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from a stockbased remuneration moddhese amendments areot applicable to the company's financial
statements

Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. This
amendment will be applicable from 1 January 2018 and deals with concerns arising from the application of
IFRS 9 on financial instruments before the introduction of new insurance contractual standards. There are
also two options for companies that subscribe insurance contracts with reference to IFRS 4: (i) an option
allowing companies to reclassifgrtain revenues or costs from certain financial assets from the income
statement to the statement of comprehensive incar(i@ a temporary exemption from the application of
IFRS 9 whose main activity is the subscription of contracts as described in IFR&d.anendments are

not applicable to the company's financial statement

IFRIC 221 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration. The interpretation (which will be
effective from 1 January 2018) deals with foreign currency transactions in the ewantrhentity
recognises a namonetary asset or liability arising from the payment or receipt of an advance before the
entity recognises the relevant asset, cost or income. The definition does not apply to taxes, insurance or
reinsurance contractsThis IRIC is not applicable to the company's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 40 regarding transfers of investment property. The amendment (effective from 1
January 2018) provides: (i) that paragraph 57 of IAS 40 is amended by stipulating that an @sttity m
transfer a property from, or to, the category of real estate investment only when there is evidence of a
change in use. (ii) The list of examples given in paragraph 57 (a) to (d) is redefined as a list of non
exhaustive example$hese amendments arehapplicable to the company's financial statements.
Improvements to the International Financial Reporting Stand§28442016). These are part of the
yearly improvement programme of policies and will enter into force onl January 2018. The improvements
concerned:

IFRS 1he shortterm exemptions provided in paragraphs-E3 have been deleted, as the relief provided

in those paragraphs had served its intended purpose;

IFRS 12 the purpose of the Standard is clarified by specifying that disclosure requirememript for

those provided in paragraphs BB16, apply to the interests of an entity listed in paragraph 5 that are
classified as held for sale, for distribution or as a discontinued operptiosuant to IFRS5;

IAS 28 clarifies that the decision to nseme at fair value through the profit and loss account an
investment in a subsidiary or joint venture held by a venture capital is possible for all investments in
subsidiaries or joint ventures from their initial recognition.

Amendments to IFRS 9Finand@l Instruments. The amendments, published in October 2017, relate to
OPrepayment Features with Negative Compensationé
value, through other comprehensive income (OCI) for financial assets with an opfionegative
compensation;

Amendments to IAS 28 Longterm Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures. The amendments define
that for the longterm receivables from an associated company or joint venture that, substantially, form
part of the investment ithe associated company or joint venture, IFRS 9 must be applied;

IFRIC 23- Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments. This interpretation provides indications on how to
reflect income taxes, with uncertainties on the tax treatment of a determined phenomeimoithe
accounting. IFRIC 23 shall come into force on 1 January 2019.

Lastly, it is noted that on 12 December 2017 the IASB published the Annual Improvements to IFR® (2015

2017 cycle), which include amendments to IAS-1lidcome Taxes, IAS 23Borrowi ng Cost s, 0|

Business Combi naldointtAmaggememta.d 81 FRS 11

Accounting standards

The measurement criteria utilised in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended

31 December 201 are the same used fothe preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 206, with the exception of that described in the above section. The more significant measurement
criteria adopted for the preparation of the consolidated financial statementsidreaited below

Tangible assets

The tangible assets are entered at their purchase cost or production cost, inclusive of directly allocated
additional charges required to make them avail abl
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apgd i cation of the international accounting standar ds¢
certain owned land and buildings at fair value, and adopted such fair value as the new cost subject to
depreciation.

Apart from the foregoing, no revaltians are permitted, even if in pursuance to specific laws. Assets subject to
capital lease are entered under tangible assets against a financial payable to the lessor and depreciated in
accordance with the criteria below.

Tangible assets are systematicalepreciated on a straighihe basis over their expected useful life, based on

the estimate of the period over which the assets will be used by the Company. When the tangible asset is made
up of a number of significant components, each with a differesgful life, each individual component is
depreciated. The depreciated value is represented by dheying valueminus the presumable net transfer

value at the end of its useful life, if material and reasonable determinable(iteargl with anundefinedprofit)

is not depreciated, even if purchased together with a building, as well as tangible assets held for sale, measured
at the lower of thecarrying valuand fair value after transfer charges.

Costs for improvement, upgrading and transformation insieg the value of tangible assets are entered as
assets in the statement of assets and liabilities.

The recoverability of thearrying valuef tangible assets is determined by adopting the criteria indicated in the
section Ol mpairment of assetsé.

Depreciaion reflects the economic and technicaleterioration of the asset ad commencesvhen the asset is

available fouse calculatecaacording to thelinear modelbfthess s et 6 s usefutlifee mat e d

The rates applied are the following:

- Buildings 2%- 4% (useful life)
- Plant and machinery 8%- 20%
- Industrial and business equipment 15%- 25%

- Other assets:

1 Furniture and fittings 10%- 15%
1 Electronic office machines 20%
1 Motor vehicles and means of internal transport 20%
1 Cars 25%
1 Other minor assets 10%- 40%

An asset is eliminated from the financial statements at the time of sale or when future economic benefits are
no longer anticipated from its use or disposal. Any losses or profits (calculated as the difference between the
net proceeds from sale and the carrying value) are included in the income statement at the time of the
aforesaid elimination.

Leasing

The leasing contracts are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the contracts substantially transfer
all the risksand benefits of ownership to the lessee.

The assets leased are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value on the date of execution of the
contract, or, if less, at the present value of the minimum payments due for the leasing. The corregpondin
payable to the lessor is included in the statement of assets and liabilities as a payable for leases. The payments
for rentals are split between capital and interest portions in order to obtain a constant interest rate on the
remaining liability. The famcial charges are directly entered in the income statement.

The costs for rentals deriving from operative leases eognised inncome statement in constant instalments

on the basis of the duration of the contract.

Goodwill and other intangible agse

Intangible assets are assets that lack physical substance, controlled by the Company and capable of generating
future economic benefits, as well as goodwill, whenever purchased for a valuable consideration.

Identification is defined by reference toehpossibility of distinguishing acquired intangible assets from the
goodwill. This requirement is normally satisfied when:

I.  the intangible assets are traceable to a legal or contractual right, or
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Il.  the asset is separable, that is it may be assigned, ¢raedf leased out or exchanged autonomously
or is an integral part of other assets. Control over the business consists in the power to exploit the
future economic benefits deriving from the assets and the possibility of limiting access to it by others.

Intangible assets are entered at cost, measured in accordance with the criteria established for tangible assets.
No revaluations are allowed, even in pursuance to specific laws.

Intangible assets with a definite useful life are systematically amortizzdthmir useful life, based on the

estimate of the period over which the assets will be used by the Company; the recoverability otansing

valuei s determined by adopting the crfinandahsaet sdél uded in
Goodwil and other intangible assets, if any, with an indefinite useful life, are not subject to amortization; the
recoverability of theircarrying valuas determined at least each year and, in any case, whenever there are

events implyingmpairment As far asgoodwill is concerned, the smallest aggregate is measured, upon which
Management, assesses the return on investment, either directly or indirectly, including the goodwill itself (cash
generating unit). Writedowns are not subject to value restoration.

Other intangible assets have been amortized by adopting the following criteria:

- Patents and intellectual property rights 5 years
- Concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights 5 years / 20 years
- Other assets 5 years / contract term

The amortisation period and criteria for intangible assets with a defimitisefu life is reviewed a least every
yearend and updated if necessay.

Equity investments in subsidiaries, associated and other companies

Equity investments in subsidiaries, associated other companies are valued at purchase, subscription or
underwriting cost, eventually writtedown in the case of lonterm impairment the original value is reinstated

in later financial years if the reasons for the wsttewn no longer exist.

Equityinvestments in other enterprises classified, in accordance with IAS 39, as available for sale are initially
recorded at their fair value and subsequently, where it might not be possible to determine a reliable fair value,
possibly writtendown In the evat of enduringlosses. The original value shall not be reinstated in the following
financial years, even should the reasons for the walitg/n no longer exist.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, current bank accountsjtdgmayable on demand and other easily
cashable shofterm investments not subject to the risk of a change in value.

Receivables and other shel#rm assets

Trade and other shorterm receivables are initially entered at their fair value and thenedalat their
amortized cost, after writedown. Upon entry, the nominal value of receivables represents their fair value upon
said date. Given the high receivables turnover, application of amortized cost produces no effects. Provision for
bad debts, as at ®h date, represents the difference between tlarrying valueof receivables and the
reasonable expectation of the forecast financial flows from their collection.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, part of a financial asset bofargroup of similar financial assets) is
cancelled from the financial statements when:

I. the rights of the asset to receive financial flows are extinguished,;
II. the right of the asset to receive financial flows is conserved but there is a contractuatablitp pay
the total without delay to a third party;
Ill. the company has transferred the right to receive financial flows from the asset and (a) it has
substantially transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership of the financial asset or (b) it has not
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substantially transferred or retained all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset, but has
transferred control thereof.

In the cases where the company has transferred the rights to receive financial flows from an asset and has not
substantiallyransferred or retained all the risks and benefits or lost control thereof, the asset is recorded in
the companyds financi al statements to tImtiseagetthent of
Group also recognises an associatedilitgh The asset transferred and associated liability are measured so as

to reflect the Gr ouThéresidualivdiversentahatdfor exanpie,gakes ithe form of a
guarantee on the asset transferred is valuated at the lower of thealimidirrying valueof the asset and the
maximum value of the consideration that the company could be required to pay.

Impairmentsof financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset or group of financial asseteeid. ifapa
financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (when a

0l oss e vsgand this lassevant has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets in question that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may be
represented by indicators such as financial difficulties,incapacity to deal with the obligations undertaken,
insolvency in the payment of interest or significant payments that are affecting the debtors or a group of
debtors; the probability that it will enter bankruptcy or other form of financial reorgaisa and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in expected future cash flows, such as changes in
context or in the economic conditions related to the obligations undertaken.

As regards the financial assets carried at amodtizest, the Company firstly assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for each financial asset that is individually significant, or collectively in the case of
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company deterthatethere is no evidence of
impairment for a financial asset evaluated individually, whether significant or not, then the asset in question is
included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and these are assessaelgollect

for impairment. The assets that are evaluated individually in terms of impairment and for which an impairment
has been recorded or continues to be recorded are not included in any collective assessments of impairment.

If there is objective evidencef aimpairment, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying value of the asset and the present value of the future estimated cash flows (excluding the expectations
of credit losses in future that have not yet occurred).

The carying value of the asset is reduced by utilisation of a wdite/n provision and the amount of the loss

will be disclosed in the income statement.

Should, in a subsequent financial year, the amount of the estimatedderite increase or diminish because of

an event that took place after the writdown was recorded, the writelown previously recorded must be
increased or dimintsed by adjusting thprovision with a contra entry in the income statement.

For financial assets available for sale, the compaegses at every reference date of the financial statements
whether there is objective evidence that an asset or a group of assets has suffered an impairment.

Impairments of noffinancial assets

The company evaluates the possible existence of indicatbtienimpairment of norfinancial assets at every
yearend. In the event of cases implying an impairment of an asset, the recoverability of its value is determined
by comparing thearrying valuevith the relevant recoverable value, which is the highethef fair value, net of
disposal charges and the usable value.

Failing a binding sales agreement, fair value is estimated on the basis of the value expressed by an active market,
by recent transactions or on the basis of the best available informatioectefly the sum the Company may

gain by selling the asset.

The valuein useis determined by discounting back the expected cash flows deriving from the use of the asset
and, if material and reasonable determinable, from its transfer at the end of itsl ligefilCash flows are
determined on the basis of reasonable assumptions, to be supported by documentary evidence, representing
the best estimate of future economic conditions, occurring over the residual useful life of the asset, attaching
greater importance to external indications. Discounting back is made at a rate that considers the risks inherent
in the specific line of business.
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Evaluation is made for each single asset or for the smallest identifiable group of assets generating autonomous
incoming ash flows, deriving from constant use (the-called cash generating unit). When the reasons for
write-down no longer apply, the assets, except for goodwill, are writi@nand the adjustment is entered in

the income statement as a revaluation (value restion). Revaluation is made at the lower between the
recoverable value and thearrying valuebefore write-downs previously made, minus the amortization and
depreciation rates that would have been allocated should no vaiiteen have been made.

Capitalstock

The costs relative to the issue of shares or options
benefits related to them) as a deduction of the revenues deriving from the issue of such instruments.

In the case of acquisition dfeasury stock, the price paid, including any directly attributable accessory costs, is
deducted from the sharehol der s 6-isseeq wri disgosedi of.tWhén the he s h a
treasury stock is sold or réssued, the price cashed, net afly directly attributable accessory costs and the
relative tax effect, is entered as shareholdersdé equi

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share are calculated by dividi
ordinary sharesn circulation during the financial year, excluding the treasury shares.

For the purpose of the calculation of the diluted earnings per share, the weighted average of the shares in
circulation is modified assuming the conversion of all the potential shaaging a dilution effect, while the
companyo6s net profit is adjusted to take into account

Financial liabilities

Fnancialliabilities that fall within the field of application of IAS 39 are classifiaddial liabilities at fair value

recorded in the income statement, as with financial payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments, according to the cases. The company®8s fi
and cerivative instruments. The company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at the time of

their initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at their fair value, equal to the consideration received at the date of
the settlement to which is added, in the case of financial payahkedirectly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequently the nederivative financial liabilities are measured with the amortised cost criterion, using the
effective interest rate methadProfits and losses are accounted for in the income statement when the liability is
extinguished, other than through the amortisation process.

The amortised cost is calculated by realising any purchase discount, premium and disbursements or costs that
are an integral part of the effectiviaterest rate. Amortisation at the effective interest rate is included in the
financial charges of the income statement

The profits and losses are accounted in the income statement when the liability is extinguishedll as
through the amortization process.

De-recognitionof financial liabilities

The cancellation from the financial statements of the financial liability takes place when the obligation underlying
the liability is extinguished, annulled or dischdrde the cases where an existing financial liability is substituted

by another of the same lender, on substantially different conditions, or the conditions of an existing liability are
substantially modified, this exchange or modification is treated aacaounting cancellation of the original
liability and the recording of a new liability, with the consequent booking to the income statement of any
differences between thearrying valus.
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Accounting treatment of derivative contracts

Cremonini S.p.A. tlises derivative financial instruments to hedge the exposure to interest rate risk.

These derivative financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value at the date when they are stipulated;
subsequently this fair value is periodicallymmeasuredthey are booked as assets when the fair value is positive
and as liabilities when negative.

The fair value is the price that would be received for the sale of an asset, or which would be paid for the transfer
of a liability, in a normal transaction betwemarket operators at the date aheasurement

The fair value of the derivative financial instruments utilised is determined with reference to the market value
whenever it is possible to identify an active market for them. If, instead, the market vaduinahcial instrument

is not easily identifiable, but can be identified for its components or a similar instrument, the market value is
determined by the valuation of the individual components of the instrument or a similar instrument. Furthermore,
the valuation of instruments for which it is not possible to identify an active market easily is determined by
resorting to the value that arises from generally accepted valuation models and techniques, which ensure a
reasonable approximation to the market valu

The accounting methods are the following:

9 fair value hedge: the changes in fair value of the hedging instrument are booked to the income
statement together with the fair value changes of the transactions hedged.
T cash fl ow hedge: ndfthefairvaue Ehangd in thieedérivapive mstrunment is

booked to the shareholdersd equity and subseq

transaction hedged produces its effects; the ineffective portion is directly booked to the income
statement.
1 financial instruments not qualified as hedges: the changes are booked to the istaieraent

Derivatives are classified as hedging instruments when the relationship between the derivative and the subject
matter of the hedge has been formally documented tiredeffectiveness of the hedge, checked periodically, is
high. When the hedging derivative covers the risk of variation of the fair value of the instruments to be hedged
(fair value hedgé e.g., hedging variations in fair value of fixed rate asset#ikadj the derivatives are entered

at their fair value with the recognition of the related effects in the income statement; consistently, the
instruments are adjusted to reflect variations in fair value associated to the risk hedged. When the derivatives
hedge risks of variation in the cash flow of the instruments to be hedged (cash flow hedge, e.g., hedging
variations of cash flow of assets/liabilities by effect of exchange rate fluctuations), the variations in the fair value
of the derivatives are indil | y entered under sharehol dersdé6 equity
statement consistently with the economic effects produced by the transaction hedged. Variations in the fair
value of derivatives not satisfying the conditions allowing themeddentified as hedging instruments are
entered in the income statement.

Employee benefits

PostEmployment Benefits are in the area of those that IAS 19 defines as defined benefits plans in connection
with benefits subsequent to employment. The accawptireatment provided for these forms of remuneration
requires an actuarial calculation that allows the projecting of the amount of theEoptoyment Benefits
already accrued into the future and actualizing this to take account of the time that willhedsee the

effective payment. Variables are considered in the actuarial calculation such as the average permanence of the
employees, the inflation rate and anticipated interest rates. The measurement of the liability is carried out by an
independent actug. Following the amendment of IAS 19, effective for the financial years commencing from 1
January 2013 and subsequently, the profits and losses from actuarial calculation the defined benefits plans are
fully recognised in the comprehensive income statetria the period to which they refer. These actuarial

profits and losses are immediately classified in the undistributed profits and are not reclassified to the income
statement in the subsequent periods. The welfare cost relates to a past service cadh, iwlhecognised at the

most recent date of the following:

A the date when a change or reduction of the plan occurred;
A the date when the Group recognised the correlated restructuring costs.

The Group recognised the following changes in the netgaion for defined benefits in the schedule of the

a
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profit/ (loss) for the year:
A service costs, including current and past service costs, profits and losses emutare reductions
and extensions;
A net interest receivable or payable.

The asset orihbility relating to defined benefits includes the present value of the defined benefits obligation

after deducting the fair value of the assets serving the plan.

Lastly, it is recalled that, following the 2007 reform of the national legislation and thueateon, for companies

with more than 50 employees, that the pesimployment benefits accruing from 1 January 2007 are configured

as a defined contribution plan, the payments to which are directly accounted for in the income statement, as a

cost, when reognised. The postmployment benefits accrued up to 31.12.2006 remain as a defined benefits

plan, without future contributions. Accordingly, its measurement was carried out by the independent actuaries
based only on the expected average residual workifegdf the employees, without more consideration of

their remuneration during a pr edet-emplmimentlknefitebefore d of s
1 January 2007 therefore suffers from a change in the calculation as an effect of the laclkatficaial

hypothesis, as previously provided, related to the salary increases. Specifically, the liability connected to
daccovuevhs evaluated on 1 January 2007 without appli
provided/total years of service), as theelating to all on 31 December 2006 can almost be considered as fully
accrued (the only exception being revaluation) in application of paragraph 67 (b) of IAS 19. It follows that for

the purposes ofthis al cul ati on, the Ocurrent service costsodo rel
considered as nil as they represent contribution payments to additional retirement bémefis orthe INPS

Treasury Fund.

Provisions for liabilities and chagge

Provisionsfor liabilities and charges regard costs and charges of a determined nature and certain or probable
existence the amount or date of occurrence of which is unknown as at the end of the financial year. These
provisions are recorded when: (ihe existence of a current, legal or implicit obligation, deriving from a past
event, is probable; (ii) the fulfilment of the obligation against payment is probable; (iii) the amount of the
obligation can be reliably estimated. The provisions are recordetha value representative of the best
estimate of the amount that the company would rationally pay to extinguish the obligation or else to transfer it
to third parties at the yealend. When the financial effect of the timing is significant and the défgsyment of

the obligations can be reliably estimated, the allocation is discounted and the increase in the connected
provision after a | apse of time is attributed to the
The additional customemndemnity provision, as with other provisions for liabilities and charges, was allocated
based on a reasonable estimate, taking available elements of the future probable liability into consideration

Income taxes

Current taxes are determined on the ba%$ a realistic forecast of the charges to be paid in application of the

prevailing tax legislation, or that substantially approved, at the-gedr The related payable is recognised net

of any tax payments on account, withholdings and tax receivablestraan be of fset, i n the i
Should there be a credit balance the amount i s shown

Deferred and prepaid income taxes are calculated on the timing differences between the values aetke as
and liabilities recorded in the financial statements and the corresponding values recognised for tax purposes

Deferred taxes payable are recorded against all the taxable timing differences, with the following exceptions:

1 the deferred taxes payablteriving from the initial recognition of goodwill, or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction itself, there are no
effects either on the financial statements profit, or profit or lostcatated for tax purposes;

1 the reversing of the taxable timing differences, associated with investments in subsidiaries, related
companies and joint ventures, can be checked and it is probable that it will not occur in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recorded against all the taxable timing differences and unutilised tax receivables and
losses carried forward, to the extent where their existence is probable and adequate future tax profits will be
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available for the use of the deductible timidifferences and tax receivables and losses carried forward, except
in the case where:

1 deferred tax assets associated with deductible timing differences deriving from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a busnesembination and, at the time of the
transaction itself, does not influence either the result of the financial statements, or the taxable profit
or loss

1 the taxable timing differences, associated with investments in subsidiaries, related compani@# and jo
ventures and deferred tax assets, are omgcognised inthe extent that it is probable that the
deductible timing differences will reverse and adequate future tax profits will be available for the use of
the deductible timing differences.

Prepaid taxassets are recognised when their recovery is probablee value of the prepaid taxes is-re
examined at every yeand and reduced to the extent to which it is no longer probable that sufficient fiscally
recognised profits will be availablerepaid tax ssets and deferred tax liabilities are classified under the non

current assets and liabilities and are offset if referred to taxes that can be offset. The balance of the
compensation, i f receivabl e, i s r ecorlaender thenitkra r t he
o0Deferred tax | iabilitieso. When the results of the
the current taxes, prepaid tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are also booked to shareholders' equity or the
comprehensig income statement consistently with recording of the element to which they refer.

Prepaid and deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates that are expected to be applied in the
year when such assets will be realised or these liabilitiddeiextinguished.

Translation criteria for the items in foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the spot exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liaslidlenominated in a foreign currency are
translated to the functional currency at the date of the financial statements.

The exchange rate differences are recorded in the income statement, including the exchange rate differences
realised on receipt of theeceivables and payment of the payables in foreign currencies.

Non-monetary items measured at the historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of initial recording of the transaction. Namonetary items recordedht their fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of determination of such value. The profit
or loss that emerges from the reconversion of nomonetary items is treated in line with the recording of the
profits ard losses relating to the change of the fair value of the aforesaid items (the translation differences on
the items for which a change of the fair value is recorded in the comprehensive income statement or the
income statement are recorded, respectivelythie comprehensive income statement or income statenjent

Revenue recognition

Revenues from sales of products are recognised at the time of the transfer of all the liabilities and charges,
deriving from ownership of the goods transferred, coincideshwlite shipment or delivery thereof.

The revenues for services are recognised with reference to the percentage of completion.

Revenues of a financial nature are recognised on an accruals basis. The interest income from all financial
instruments measured @mortised cost is recognised utilising the effective interest rate (EIT), which is the rate
that exactly discounts the future payments and receipts, estimated with the expected life of the financial
instrument

Dividends

Dividends are recognised whendin distribution is certain, that is, when the subsidiaries havsohesd to
distribute dividendsor else the authorisation of the local monetary authority that approves the
authorisation of the local monetary authority which approves expatriation.
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Recognition of costs

Costs are recognised when related to assets and services purchased and/or received during the period.
Operating lease instalments are booked to the income statement on an accruals basis.

The capital portion of financial lease instalngeigt booked as a reduction of the financial payable, while the
interest portion is recognised in the income statement.

Charges for services are recognised on an accruals basis.

Interest income from all financial instruments measured at amortised costagnesed utilising the effective
interest rate (EIT), which is the rate that exactly discounts the future payments and receipts, estimated with
the expected life of the financial instrument

Main accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions adopkéariagement

Corporate management has made accounting estimates based on their overall and/or subjective judgements
The generally accepted accounting standards applrethé preparation of the interim financial statements and
accounting reports, take aount of past experiences and hypotheses considered as reasonable and realistic on
the basis of known information at that time. The use of these accounting estimates influences the carrying value
of the assets and liabilitiesd the information orthe potential assets and liabiliti@$ the date of the financial
statements, as well as the revenuasd costs for the reporting period. The effective results can differ from
those estimated due to the uncertainty characterising the hypotheses and conditionéich the estimates

are based. Indicated below are the critical accounting estimates of the preparation process of the financial
statements andinterim financial reports as these result in ldgh recourse to subjective judgements,
assumptions and estimateslating to matters that by their nature arengertain. Should these estimates and
assumptions, based on the management s best assessmer
these would be amended appropriately in the period when theuchstances themselves vary. The changes of

the conditions on which the judgements, assumptions and estimates adopted are based could determine a
material impact on the subsequent results.

Shown below are the main estimates and assumptions made by thegeraent for the preparation of these
annual financial statements, of which the changes, though not foreseeable at this time, could have effects on the
financial statements

A Estimates adopted for the purpose of measurement of the impairment of the assets

For the purposes of verification of a possible impairment of the equity investments recorded in the financial
statement s, the company has adopted the methodol ogy
assetso.

The discount rate utilised forhte aveage cost of capital (WACC) was®%0. The evaluation of any impairment
test on goodwill was carried out annuallytivireference to 31 December 201

A Estimates adopted in the actuarial calculation for the purpose of the calculation of the deéinefits
in connection with the posemployment benefits

The measurement of the posimployment benefits liability was carried out by an independent actuary on the
basis of the following assumptions:

A Estimates adopted in the actuarial calculation fug purpose of the calculation of the defined benefits
in connection with the posemployment benefits

- the anticipated inétion rate is 150%;

- the discount rate utiliseds:

- 0.88% (duration 76 10);
- 1.30% (duration 10 )

! Average performance curve deriving from IBOXX Eurozone Corporates AAQ#ears).
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- the anticipated annual ratof increase in postmployment benefitss 2.625%;
- annual rate of salary increase is equal to:
Managers 250%
Dobs 1.00%
Office staff 1.00%
Factory staff1.00%
- annual Posemployment benefit payment frequency forecasB.a0%;
- the turnover of employees wag5%.

A Estimates adopted in the calculationd&ferred taxes

A significant discretional measurement is required of the directors to determine the amount of the deferred
tax assets that can be booked. They must estimate ttabable timing of the occurrence and the amount of
the future taxable profits

A Others
The following financi al statements elements are aff.e

- obsolete inventory;
- amortisation, depreciation and writdowns
- measurements of other assets.

Financial risk management

The principal risks identified, monitored and actively managed by Cremonini S.p.A. are the following:

- Market risks: deriving from companyds exposur e fterest
rates, and volatility of the prices of the products and services sold;

- Credit risk: deriving from the possibility of bankruptcy of a counterparty;
- Liquidity risk: deriving from the absence of financial resources to meet shkewn financial
commitments.

Cremonini S.p.A. ses derivative financial instruments to hedge the exposure to interest rate risk.
Nevertheless, in the cases where the derivative financial instruments do not meet all the conditions provided
for the accounting treatment of # hedging derivative financial instruments (hedge accountimgge are
booked at the fair value with a contra entry to the income statement.

Market Risks

The market risk consists of the possibility that changes in the exchange rates, interest rdtpecas of the
products, can negatively influence the value of the assets, liabilities or expected cash flows.

Exchange rate risk

Cremonini S.p.A., operating mainly nationally, is marginally exposed to changes in exchange rates that therefore
have litte effect on the financial flows that originate from operations and loan transactions in currencies other
than the European currencgyro).

At 31 December 207 the Parent Company did not have an exchange rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

In considerationof the above comments, the changes in exchange rates with respect teufteshould not
have influenced Cremonini S.p.A.d8ds result for the per
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Interest rate risk

Cremonini S.p.A.as is evident from the net debt, is exposed to thekrigf fluctuation in interest rates that
affectthe marketvalue offinanciabssetsandliabilities, and the amount éihancial charges.

The medium/longerm loans arepf about 60%stipulated with variable interest rates exposing the company to
the risk of a change in future cash flows while the fixed rate loans expose the company to the risk of a change
of the fair valueof the loans themselve§.here are also some loans originally at variable interest rates for
which hedgi ng 0i n tasrwers signad dy reeans of avipiah the wanable Euribor rate was
substituted with a fixed rate.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 204, a hypothetic increase of 1% of the Euribor, as with all the other variables, would
have determined a higher ptax charge (and therefore a corresponding reduction of the shareholders' equity)
of about0.7 million euro on an annual base Qmillion thousandeuro as at 31 December 2@).

Credit risk

The credit risk represents |ltobfsecsomdpanwd ngedXposnunedet @
to meet obligations assumed and is evaluated both in commercial terms, i.e., correlated to the customer
typologies and to the contractual terms and concentration of the sales, and in financial terms cdntoeitte

typology of the counter parties utilised in financial transactions.

Management of trade credit is the responsibility of the Customers Office, Debt Recovery Office and Disputes
Management on the basis of formalised valuation procedures for commex | partnersd credi
procedure permits the definition of those rules and operational mechanisms that ensure the generation of a
payments flow such as to guarantee Cremonini S.p.A. customer solvability and the profitability of the
relationship.

The monitoring of the customer is based on collection of data and information on the new customers (to

permit a complete and correct evaluation of the risks that a new customer can contribute) and supervision of

the evolution of individual credit positis. Furthermore, the receivables balance is monitored during the

financial year so as to ensure that thetstandingpositions are never significant.

The companyds operating practices allow control of t
merit classes of the customers that request deferment of payments, thus limiting sales of products and/or
services to customers without an adequate level of credit line and guarantees.

The credit risk is also mitigated by the fact that there are no mampositions due to a concentration of
positions, in view of the multiple numbers of customers and particularly distributed turnover. With regard to
the financial counterparty risk deriving from the use of liquidity, the compaymements policies that liinthe

loan exposure with the individual financial institutions.

At the reference date of the financial statements, the maximum exposure to the credit risk is equal to the value
of each category of the receivables indicated below:

(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Current trade receivables 2,060 2,240
Other non-current assets 44 3,061
Other current assets 2,682 255
Total 4,787 5,556

The fair value of e above categories is not indicated as the carrying value represents a reasonable
approximation. The value of the Trade receivables, Other-oarrent assets and Other current asset items

are classifiable as o0Level redhe inputs ara motaresbhsedaos cbsetvable or r
market data.

Please refer to point 8 of the explanatory notes to the financial statements for information regarding the
maximum exposure to credit risk.
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Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk represents the tisthat, due to the incapacity of raising new funds or liquidate assets in the
market, the company cannot meet its payment obligations, determining an impact on the economic result in the
case where the company bliged to sustain additional costs to me&s commitments or, as an extreme

consequence, a situationofinsey t hat pl aces the companyds activiti

Cremonini S.p.Asystematically respects the maturities of its commitments, a condigdt allowsto operate

in the market with the necgsary flexibility and reliability for the purpose of maintaining a correct balance
betweenthe supply and use of financial resources.

Cremonini S.p.Amanages the liquidity risk through prudent control of the necessary cash and cash equivalents
for the normal conduct of operations and availability of credit lines that guarantee a satisfying level of resources
sufficient to cover any financial necessities. These controls mainly take place through the constant monitoring
by the centralised treasury of the ceipts and payments flows of all the companies, pursuing the maintenance
of a balance in terms of duration and composition of the payables. This specifically allows the monitoring of the
resources flows generated and absorbed by normal operations. Withrcetp management of the resources
absorbed by the investment activitjésis generally preferred to findourcesthroughspecific longerm loans.

The table below analyses the financial liabilities and derivative financial liabilities on the baswofréctual
maturities as at the date of the financial statements. It is noted that the amounts indicated do not reflect the
carrying valug (with the exception of the balances within 12 months, for which the book balances reflect
reasonable estimates dfie financial flows, given the insignificance of the discounting effect) as they are not
discounted. The financial flows from variable rate loans were estimated utilising the average rate of
indebtedness at the reference date of the financial statements.

(Euro/000) Within 12 months 1-5 year: Over 5 year: Total

31 December 2017

Financial payables 67,347 26,56€ - 93,9132

Financial instruments / Derivatives - 48 - 48

Trade Liabilities 6,967 - - 6,967
74,314 26,614 - 100,92¢

31 December 2016

Financial payables 73,13€ 44,142 605 117,88t

Financial instruments / Derivatives - - - -

Trade Liabilities 5,488 - - 5,488
78,626 44,142 605 123,373

Classes of financial instruments

The following elements are recognised in conformity with the accounting standards relating to financial
instruments:
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(Euro/000) 31 December 2017
Loans an( Derivates utilised fo
Balance Sheet Assets . . Total
Receible: hedgin¢
Non-current derivative financial instruments - - -
Non-current financial receivables - - -
Other non-current receivable items 44 - 44
Current financial receivables 391 - 391
Current trade receivables 2,060 - 2,060
Current derivative financial instruments 9,164 - 9,164
Financial activities available for sale 4,390 - 4,390
Current tax receivables - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 182 - 182
Other current receivable items 2,682 - 2,682
Total 18,913 - 18,913
. Other financia Derivates utilised fo
Balance Sheet Liabilities N Total
liabilities hedg.
Non-current financial payables 26,56¢€ - 26,56¢€
Current financial payables 67,347 - 67,347
Derivative financial instruments - 48 48
Total 93,914 48 93,962
(Euro/000) 31 December 2016
Loans an( Derivates utilised fo
Balance Sheet Assets . . Total
Receible: hedgin¢
Non-current derivative financial instruments - - -
Non-current financial receivables - - -
Other non-current receivable items 3,061 - 3,061
Current financial receivables 434 - 434
Current trade receivables 2,240 - 2,240
Current derivative financial instruments 8,709 - 8,709
Financial activities available for sale 4,405 - 4,405
Current tax receivables - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 10,43z - 10,43z
Other current receivable items 255 - 255
Total 29,536 - 29,536
. Other financia Derivates utilised fo
Balance Sheet Liabilities . Total
liabilities hedg.
Non-current financial payables 44,747 - 44,747
Current financial payables 73,13¢ - 73,13¢€
Derivative financial instruments - - -
Total 117,88¢ - 117,88¢

In conformity with the requirements of the changes introduced to IFRS 7 commencing fromdryana9, we

indicate that the derivative financial instruments, constituting hedging contracts on exchange and interest rates,

are classifiable as oLevel 26 financi al assets, as t}
figuresdirectly observable on the market

In the same manner, with regard to the naarrent financial payables, the recognition of which at fair value is
indicated in paragraph 14 of these expl an ataothey
inputs that influence the fair value are directly observable market figures.

notes

With regard to the -oOthemt cagsseind o aintdemso,n you are r |
paragraphs 6 and 11 of these explanatory notes.
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Capital managemepolicy

The companyds primary ai m, regard c apientdylinrelatontage ment ,
debt, with the purpose of maintaining equity solidity and achieve a functional debt/equity ratio for the purpose
of adequate managemeof the financial leverage.

For the purpose of reaching these objectives, the company, in additidthet@ursuitof satishctory economic
results and the generation of cash flows, can intervene on the dividends policy and configuration of the
¢ 0 mp acapjtad. s

The mainindicators that the company uses for capital management are:

1) R.O.S. (Return on sales);

2) R.O.l. (Return on investments);

3) R.O.A.C.E. (Return On Average Capital Employed);
4) R.O.E. (Return on equity);

5) Net Debt / Equity;

6) Net Debt /EBITDA

Presentation of the financial statements

The Statement of Assets and Liabilities, l ncome St at
have been drawn up in Euro, while the Financial Statements and the Explanatory Notes have been drawn up in
thousands oéuro in order to facilitate their presentation and interpretation.

I nformation included in the Directorsd Repor

With respect to the nature of the Groupds business ac
of the financihyear, relationships with associated and related companies together with other information
relating to the different business sectors in which the Group operates, pleasd er t o t he Director

1 The company il delndt iffiineasncadsal 0 laesvsee tinput Ihas absignificani effect on hhe Sagr valué eecoededt h e
represented by pricess uot ed on an active market for assets or | iabinputisrotes and as
based on observable market figures.
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Details of the main items of the statement of assets and liabilities

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Specific statements have been prepared for the two categories ofcnoent assets (tangible and intangible)
which have been respectively attached in annex 3 and 4 that indicate for each item the historic cost, previous
amortization and depreciation, changes over the period and final balances.

I. Tangible assets

(Euro/000) Balance at Purchases Decreases Other Depreciation Balance at

31.12.2016 31.12.2017
Land and buildings 77,33¢ 637 - - (1,498, 76,474
Plant and machinery 3,549 647 - - (651) 3,545
Industrial and business equipment 2 - - 1) 1
Other assets 2,306 357 - 29.00 - (412) 2,222
Fixed assets under construction and advances 100 571 - - 0 671
Total 83,292 2,212 (29) 0 (2,562) 82,913

Land and buildings

The increase in the year, amaimg to euro 637 thousand, mainly refers to expenditure on propiegin Rome
and Castelvetro.

The land and buildings amncumbeed by mortgages, against the loans obtained, for an amouetiraf51.9
million.

Plant and machinery

The investments coneaed mainly the purchase of specific facilities for the head office anduhléings in
Rome and Via Farini in Modena.

Other assets

The change for the year refers to increases connected with the purchase of furniture, fittings and motor
vehicles.

Fixed assets under construction and advances

The item shows an increase of abdait1lthousandeuro due to the restructuring in progressf the buildings in
Rome.

2. Other intangible assets

Balance at Balance at
(Euro/000) Purchases Decreases Other Amort.
31.12.2016 31.12.2017
Patents and intellectual property rights 2 - - - 1)
Concessions, licences, trademarks and similar rights 5 1 - - 2) 4
Total 7 1 0 0 3) 5
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3. Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies

Theseamount to 255751 thousandeuro (255,499 thousandeuro at 31 December 208), higher than the
previous year by52thousandeuro.

The main changes that took place in the financial year and the additional information list regarding the
subsidiary comparseare deductible, in detail, in Annexes 5 and 6.

Equity investments in subsidiaries

The main changes during the year 20&garded shareholdings in:
- Interjet S.r.l. for a future share capital increase paymerguwb 1 million euro and a writedown of
euro 901thousandeuro;
- Global Service S.r.l. for the revaluation etiro 194 thousand to restore part of past writelowns
aimed at aligning the value of equity investments with the corresponding value of the company's net
equity.
The surplus of the residliaarrying value of the single equity investments in subsidiaries compared to the
measurement made with the shareholders’ equity method (appendix 6) is not due to enduring impairment since
it is attributable to the greater value of the assets held by thbsidiary or to the potentials and goodwill of
the industrial and commercial assets they manage.
More specifically, all equity investments presenting impairment indicators were tested for impairment, and the
results were positive.

4.Investments in othecompaniesand Financial assets held for sale

(E uro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Taxassets 1,031 1,033
Financial assets held forsale 4,390 4,405

The reducti on i frinahdmlkassbtahdldonrc es aolfe 6t hies dat t ri but abl e to
of the equity investments in BPER Banca S.p.A. and Banco Popolare Societa Cooperativa.

Pleae refer to "Equity investments in other companies” in Appendix 5 for more details.

5. Other non-current assets

(Euro/000) 31.12.201% 31.12.201¢
Taxassets 42 3,059
Otherreceivables 2 2

Provision forbad debts - -
Accrued income and prepaid expenses - -
Total 44 3,061

The decrease obther non-current assets is due to a reimgementof a receivableecordedin previous years
following the presentation odn IRES (Corporate Income Tax) repayment requestthe years from 2007 to
2011

This amount, relating to Cremonini S.p.A. as the consolidating company, and the companies participating in the tax
consolidation of such years, was originally calculatechelRAP (Regional Business Tax) paid by the companies
for costs oflabour and associates not deducted.
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Current assets

6. Current financial receivables

(E uro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Receivables from subsidiaries 391 434
Total 391 434

Details of the receivables fro subsidiaries are givdaelow;you are referred to Annex 1 for fuhier details:

(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Receivables from subsidiaries 150 5
Global Service Logistics S.r.l. in liq. - 5
E-Marco Polo (E-MP) Spa 150 -
Provision forbad debts - -
Receivables for dividends distribution 0 0
Receivables from subsidiaries for tax consolidation 241 429
As.Ca. S .p.A. - 26
Global Sewice S ..l 14 98
New Catering S .r.l. 24 219
Roadhouse S .p.A. - 48
Roadhouse GrillRoma S .r.l. 203 38
Total 391 434

Financial receivables from subsidiaries refer to the financial relationships settled through the ordinary treasury
current account, the terms and conditions of which are aligned to the conditions normally applied by the banks.
Specificallythe Euribor is used as the benchmark interest rate, increased by a spread that varies as a function of
the indebtedness or credit position of the balances during the.year
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7. Current trade receivables

Trade receivables are broken down as follows:

(E uro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Receivables from customers 322 325
Due within 12 months 433 436
P rovision forbad debts (111) (111)
Receivables from subsidiaries 1,696 1,828
As.Ca. S .p.A. 147 210
Chef Express S.p.A. 12 24
Fiorani & C. S .p.A. 101 119
Ges.carS.r.l. 564 666
Global Serice S.r.l. 69 157
Guardamiglio S.r.l. 128 95
INALCA S .p.A. - 5
Inalca Food & Beverage S .r.l. - 2
InterjetS .r.l. 2
Momentum S ervices Ltd 5
Realbeef S.r.l. 48 -
Roadhouse S .p.A. - 12
Soc. Agr. Corticella S .r.l. 621 514
TecnostarS.r.l. - 17
Receivables from associated companies 27 79
Time Vending S.r.l. 27 79
Receivables from related companies 15 8
Cremofin S.r.l. 15 8
Total 2,060 2,240

The change in the bad debt provision was the following:

(E uro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Initial balance (111) (111)
Utilized during the year - -
Finalbalance (111) (111)

At 31 December 2017 the trade receivables and bad debt provision were apportioned by due date as follows:

(E uro/000) 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Amount Bad debtprov Amount Bad debtprov
Trade receivables notoverdue 10 - - -
Overdue up to 30 days 29 - 69 -
Overdue from 31 to 60 days 14 - 13 -
Overdue from 61 to 90 days 21 - 18 -
Overdue from 91 to 120 days - - 336 -
Overdue over120 days 359 (111) - (111)
Total 433 (111) 436 (111)
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8. Current tax assets

(E uro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Receivables foradvance on directtaxes 2,763 1,538
Receivables forwithholdings 18 -
VAT creditand othertaxes requested forreimbursement 6,388 7,176
Othersundry receivables 2) (2)
Provision forbad debts 3) 3)
Total 9,164 8,709

The balance of 9.2 million, increased by 0.5 million eammpared to 8.7 million in 2016. This increase is mainly
due to the combined effect of the following factors: on the one hand the reduction of the VAT receivable
recognised on periodic settlement, and on the other hand the increase of direct tax re@sivairsequent to the
recognition of lower tax charges compared to the payments on accooatle during 2016 by the companies
falling within the scope of the tax consolidation to which Cremonini S.p.A. has participated as consolidating
company.

9. Cash anatash equivalents

(E uro/000) 31.12.201" 31.12.201¢
Cash 14 9
Bank and postal accounts 168 10,423
Total 182 10,432

The balance, which represents the available cash and cash equivalents at-#redy@ariudes a shoterm Time
Deposit of 10 million, with a high rate of return.
Please refeto the cash flow statement for the 2@levolution of cah and cash equivalents

10. Other current assets

(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 79 83
Otherreceivables
Advances to suppliers 59 52
Receivables from social security institutions 159 239
Provision forbad debts (143) (143)
Othersundry receivables 2,528 24
Total 2,682 255
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LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERSS EQUITY AND LI ABILITIES

Sharehol dersd equity

As far as changes are concerned, please refer to the statement of changes in equity.
11. Share capital

The share capital as 31 December 207 of euro 67,073,932 is represented by 128,988,330 ordinary shares of
the Parent Company Cremonini S.p.A., with a par valuewb 0.52 each, fully subscribed and paid up, with
normal rights.

Treasury stock
At 31 December 207 the Paremh Company did not hold any treasury stock.

12. Reserves

Share premium reserve

This reserve is made up of the share premium paid by the shareholders at the time of the Public Subscription
Offer in 1998.

This reserve amounting to 78,280 thousaguto hasnot undergone changes compared to 31 December&01

Legal reserve
The legal reserve amounting figt,749 thousandeuro remained unchanged in the financial year, having reached
the limit referred to in Article 2430 of the Italian Civil Code.

Reserve for tansition to IAS
This is the reserve set up following the fisiine adoption of the International Accounting Standards.

Revaluation reserve

This reserve identifies changes in flag value of financial instruments available for sale. Changes for tiwel per
that affected the reservender examinatiorwere a decrease in the value of the shares held in Banco Popolare
Societa Cooperativandin BPER Banca S.p.A.

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share as at 31 Decembei720tounted t00.1485(euro 0.1373at 31 December2016) and
has been calculated on the basis of net profiteonfo 19,157,256 thousand divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in 2@1lequal t0128988330

Diluted earnings per share
There is no difference betweethe basic and diluted earnings per share.
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13. Non-current financial payables
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(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Due between 1 and 5 years

Payables to banks 26,541 41,64z

Payables to other financial institutions - -

Payables to subsidiaries for Ires reimursement 25 2,500
Total payables due between 1 and 5 years 26,566 44,142
Due beyond 5 years

Payables to banks - 605

Payables to other financial institutions - -
Total payables due beyond 5 years 0 605
Total 26,566 44,747

In 2017 ,as a result othe IRES reimbursement described'5. Other nontcurrent assets”, Cremonini S.p.A.
consolidating company, recogniziedeach subsidiary participating in the tax consolidatiorirtbe/n portion of

receivable.

The breakdown of payables to banks, with the indication of the interest rates applied, is shown below:

(Euro/000) Credit line Current Between 1 Beyond € Total

and 5 years years 31.12.2017
Overdraft 7,900 824 - - 824
Hot Money 33,50C 17,524 - - 17,524
Mortgages 55,054 28,51¢ 26,541 - 55,054
Total 46,861 26,541 0 73,402
The composition of the mortgages is as follows:
Bank Expiry date Current between 1 beyond 5 Total
(Euro/000) and 5 years years 31.12.2017
CA - CIB e CariParma (Pool) 15/06/18 14,00C - - 14,000
SANFELICE 1893 Banca Popolare Soc. Coop. p.a 15/01/19 138 35 - 173
UBI Banca S.p.A. 29/07/2C 5,024 9,043 - 14,067
Banca Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. 30/06/22 5,000 17,50C - 22,500
Banco do Brasil AG 10/11/18 4,400 a = 4,400
Amortized Costs (49) 37) - (86)
Total 28,513 26,541 0 55,054
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Net Debt

The Net Debt and the detail of its principal components are shown below:

(Euro/000) 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

A. Cash 13 9
B. Cash equivalent 168 10,423
C. Financial assets held for sale S -
D. Liquidity (A) + (B) + (C) 181 10,432
E. Current financial assets 150 5
F. Current bank liabilities 46,861 55,00E
G. Current financial instruments S -
H. Other current financial liabilities 17,031 15,433
I- Current financial liabilities 63,892 70,438
J. Current net debt (1) - (E) - (D) 63,561 60,001
K. Non current bank liabilities 26,541 42,247
L. Bonds - -
M. Other non current financial liabilities - -
N. Non current financial instruments 48 -
O. Non current debt (K) + (L) + (M) + (N) 26,589 42,247
P. Net Debt (J) + (O) 90,150 102,24¢

Some loan agreements provide for financial covenants on the happening of which the bank reserves the right to
terminate the loan. The covenants on the loan agreements taumding at31 December 20%, which were
respected, are shown in the tables below.

Tabe 1

Banca Intesa Sanpaol CA - CIB e CariParm
(Euro/000) UBI Banca S.p.A.

S.p.A. (Pool)

Amount of the loans as at 31 December 2017 22,50C 12,821 14,00C
Recipient of the loan Cremonini S.p.A Cremonini S.p.A Cremonini S.p.A
Expiry date 30/06/202z 29/07/202( 15/06/201¢
Covenants
Net Debt/EBITDA <=4,0 (a <=4,0 (a <=4,0 (a
Net Debt/Equity <=2,75 (a <=1,0 (b)
Net Debt Corrent / Net Debt No Corrent >=4,0 (a >=4,0 (a

(a) covenants calculated on the consolidated financial statements of the Cremonini Group;

(b) covenants calculated on the separate financial statements of Cren®piA.;

14. Employee benefits

The item includes the payable for staff severance indemnities and the movement in the period, which was the

t Mairr aceoitinghy pot he

following:

(Euro/000) 31.12.201} 31.12.201
Opening balance 354 418
Accrued for the year 3 6
Use for the financial year 7) (74)
Actuarial gain losses o 4
Closing balance 350 354
Wi t h reference to the significant ac

judgments, estimates and assumptions adopted by Manageément t he t abl bel ow

liabilities deriving from the possibéhanges thereto
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(E uro/000) Tumover Tumoverrate - Inflazion rate 4 Inflazion rate - Discountrate Discountrate -
rate+1% 1% 0.25% 0.25% +0.25% 0.25%
Effecton the final liability (348) 351 (353) 345 (343) 355
15. Non-current provisions foriabilities and charges
(Euro/000) 31.12.2017 31.12.201¢
Provisions for taxes - 93
Labour disputes - -
Minor lawsuits and disputes 50 50
Provision for risks and losses 102 102
Total 152 245
(Euro/000) Balance at Provision Use Balance at
31.12.2016 31.12.2017
Provisions for taxes 93 - - 93 -
Labour disputes - - - -
Minor law suits and disputes 50 - - 50
Provision for losses on equity investments - - - -
Provision for risks and losses 102 - - 102
Total 245 - (93) 152

The movement of tk balance, as shown in the table, is due to the use of certain provisions allocated to
liabilities arising in previous years and settled or exceeded in the current financial year and the provision for a
liability related to a formal notice of assessmestiad following a tax audit for the 2013 tax period.

The provisions for liabilities, unchanged since @0&re the quantification of liabilities connected with
contractual costs and charges of probable existence.

16. Deferred tax liabilities

As at Decenber 31, 20%, the deferred taxes amounted teuro 3,917 thousand and represerguro 4,028
thousand of deferred taxes and 1iHousand of prepaid taxes.

The first items consist principally of deferred tax liabilities arising from the revaluation of tehtualdings,
carried out during the transition to international accounting standards, and the deferral of taxation on capital
gains realised while deferred taxes refer to the tax effect calculated on the taxed funds taxable in subsequent
years.

The detai$ of the individual positions are shown in the following tables.

(Euro/000)

31.12.201°

31.12.201¢

Advance Taxation
Provision for bad debt
Taxed Provisions
Interest payables deductable
Other
Total
Taxable amount forIRES
Tax Rate
Advanced taxation for IRES

Effect of change in tax rate effective from 2017

Amount of timing
differences

Amount of timing

Fiscal Effect )
differences

Fiscal Effect

160 160
152 152
48
103 157
463 469
463 469
24.00% 24.00%

113
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(Euro/000) 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Amount of timing Amount of timing

Fiscal Effect Fiscal Effect

differences differences
Deferred Taxation
Capital Gains 0 2,435
Intangible assets 16,784 16,84¢€
Total 16,784 19,281
Tax Rate 24.0% 24.0%
Advanced taxation for IRES 4,028 4,627

Effect of change in tax rate effective from 2017
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Current liabilities

17. Current financial payables

(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201
Payables to subsidiaries 12,45C 12,697
Payables controlling companies 8,036 5,436
Payables to banks 46,861 55,00¢&
Closing balance 67,347 73,138

With regard to the change in bank payables compared to the previous year please refer to the cash flow
statement and commenis the Directors' Report with reference to the net debt.

The detail of the payables to subsidiaries is reported below; please refer to Annex 1 for further details:

(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.2011
Payables to consolidated subsidiaries 8,995 9,999
Chef Express S.p.A. 1,962 2,17C
Global Service S.r.l. 1,731 1,055
Inalca S.p.A. 2,486 2,893
Interjet S.r.l. 1,558 951
Marr S.p.A. 1,258 2,93C
Payables to unconsolidated subsidiaries - -
Payables to subsidiaries for tax consolidation 3,455 2,698
Avirail Italia S.r.l. 8 -
As.CaSu.r.l. 483 -
Chef Express S.p.A. 1,299 2,190
Interjet S.r.l. 287 262
Marr S.p.A. 754 246
Roadhouse S.p.A. 624 -
Total 12,450 12,697

Relative to the financial payables to consolidated companies

O @rrentf i nanci al relcei vabl esé

18. Current tax liabilities

please cefibie tdescmption in the item
(note 6

(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.2011
IRES - -
Withholding taxes 494 575
Total 494 575
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19. Current trade liabilities

(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Suppliers 926 956
Payables to parent company 35 0
Cremofin S.r.l. 35 -
Payables to subsidiaries 6,006 4,532
Aviralil Italia S.r.l. in lig. 2 12
Chef Express S.p.A. 1,407 325
Global Service S.r.l. 3 10
INALCA S.p.A. 1,620 1,670
Inalca Food & Beverage S.r.l. 80 86
Marr S.p.A. - 373
Italia Alimentari S.p.A 865 470
Marr S.p.A. 347 -
New Catering S.r.l. 91 87
Realbeef S.r.l. - 103
Roadhouse S.p.A. 1,409 1,218
Roadhouse Grill Roma S.r.l. 68 151
Sara S.r.l. 1 6
Tecno-Star Due S.r.l. 113 21
Total 6,967 5,488

20. Other current liabilities

(Euro/000) 31.12.201° 31.12.201¢
Accrued expenses and deferred income 20 20
Inps/Inail/Scau 155 165
Inpdai/Previndai/Fasi/Besusso 27 28
Payables to other social security institutions 34 36

Other payables
Advances and other payables from customers - -

Payables for employee remuneration 452 558
Guarantee deposits and down payments received 131 131
Payables to directors and auditors 401 472
Other minor payables 78 78
Total 1,298 1,488

The payablefor employeesremunerationincludes the current wages and salaries still to lzdpas at 31
December 20%, as well as the allocations relating to the holidays accrued and not taken and relating charges

Guarantees, sureties and commitments

(Euro/000) 31.12.201% 31.12.201¢
Direct guarantees 0 sureties
- subsidiaries 210,57¢ 210,49¢
- other companies 10,33¢€ 7,776
220,911 218,27E
Direct guarantees o6 |l etter of com
- subsidiaries 185,25¢ 148,492
185,258 148,493
Direct guarantees 0 credit mandat
- subsidiaries 6,260 6,260
6,260 6,260
Total guarantees, sureties and commitments 412,42¢ 373,02¢
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Direct guarantee® sureties

These guarantees include both the guarantees given dirbgtthe companies, in the interests of both Group
companies and third parties to banks for loans or credit lines, and those guarantees for which the Parent
Company is jointly liable, given by banks or insurance companies, for a variety of commercedtimans
Group VAT setoffs, participation in tenders, etc.

Other companiedl t shoul d be noted that, with reference to g
the classification normally given to guarantees given directly to third parties bypGcompanies, but

exclusively in their own interests. Such guarantees are rarely given in the interests gbahiydcompanies and

even in such a case, in the context of transactions effected for the benefit of Group companies. In particular

this item indudes the following (in thousands efiro):

Company to which the guarantee is provide( Beneficiary Amount Reason
i ) Cremonini S.p.A. and )
Revenue Office/VAT Office Modena o 5,336 VAT for compensation
other subsidiaries
Cremonini S.p.A. and - Customs rights

Customs Office o
other subsidiaries
Guaranteeingoncession$or on-boardcatering
Cremonini S.p.A. 5,000 services, station buffets and operation of stor
facilities.

Ferrovie dello Stato and operating companies (Gra
Stazioni, Cento Stazioni, Fer Servizi, Trenitalia, etc

L Administration of rented properties, ener

. Cremonini S.p.A. and ) ) prop ) 9

Other minor items . - supplies,credit cards, successfukconclusionof
other subsidiaries

contracts, etc.

Total 10,336

Direct guarantee$) comfort letters

Comfort letters are exclusively concerned with guarantees given to banks for the grant of loans or credit lines
and include O0si mpl ed comfyfmrbRlthowsdandeaad. s of t he Parent Co

Indirect guarantee8 credit mandates

Credit mandates relate to bank overdrafts and endorsement credits of subsidiaries guaranteed by credit lines
granted by banks to the Company.
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Details of the main items of the income statent

21. Revenues

These are broken down as follows:

CONSOLIDATED FINSTATEM

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Revenues from sales - Goods for resale 6 6
Revenues from sales - Others 10 5
Revenues from services 2,803 2,504
Advisory services to third parties 1,610 1,740
Rent income 2,112 1,554
Other revenues from ordinary activities 56 57
Total 6,597 5,866

The increase in the item concerned is mainly attributable to higher revenues for services provided to

subsidiaries (collateral guarantees and insurance cover) and for the leasing of the restrychperty of Via

San Vincenzo ifRome that became operative in the second half of 2016, generated revenues for only six

months in the previous financial year.

Below is a breakdown of revenues by geographical area:

at tmnorbut ed

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Italy 6,559 5,814
European Union 38 52
Non-EU countries - -
Total 6,597 5,866
22. Other revenues

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Insurance reimbursements 3 5
Capital gains on disposal of capital goods 3 -
Other cost reimbursements 865 622
Services, consultancy and other minor revenues 279 733
Total 1,150 1,360
The decrase in the balance is to be mainly

revenue t hat , |l ast year, included the release of
exceeded the liabilities incurred.

23. Costs for purchases

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Costs for purchases - Goods for resale (20) (13)
Costs for purchases - Stationery and printed paper (12) 9)
Other costs for purchases (35) (31)
Total (56) (53)
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24, Other operating costs

CONSOLIDATED FINSTATEM
I I I .

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Costs for services (4,480) (4,021)
Costs for leases and rentals (51) (60)
Other operating charges (848) (1,459)
Total (5,379) (5,540)
The change in the balance with respect to last year is detailed in the following tables.
Costs for services
(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Energy consumption and utilities (343) (282)
Maintenance and repairs (292) (285)
Commisions, commercial and distribution services (735) (717)
Third-party services and outsourcing (44) (25)
Purchasing services - )
Other technical and general services (3,066) (2,709)
Total (4,480) (4,021)
Costs for leases and rentals
(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Lease of business premises, royalties and others 0 0
Rents and charges payable other property assets (51) (60)
Leases and rentals related to real and personal property (51) (60)
Total (51) (60)
Other operating charges
(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Losses on receivables - (640)
Indirect taxes and duties (475) (449)
Contributions and membership fees (72) (101)
Other minor costs (301) (269)
Total (848) (1,459)
25. Personnel costs
(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Salaries and wages (1,789) (1,902}
Social security contributions (540) (618)
Staff Severance Provision (123) (227)
Other personnel costs () (20)
Total (2,459) (2,667)
On 31 December 201 the Company employed a total staff b® persons, as follows:
Factory staf Office staf Manager Total
Eployees as at 31.12.20 0 15 5 20
Eployees as at 31.12.20 0 14 5 19
Increases (decrease 0 Q) 0 Q)
Average no. of employees duril 0 14 5 19
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26. Amortization, depreciation, writelowns and provisions
(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Depreciation of tangible assets (2,562) (2,139)
Amortization of intangible assets ?3) (5)
Write-downs and provisions - (15)
Total (2,565) (2,159)

Depreciation of the tangible assets increased by about 423 thousand euro compared to 2016. This change is
agribable to the depreciation of the refurbished real estate complex in Via San Vincenzo, Rome that was
depreciated with effect from July 2016 when completed, burdening only six months of 2016, but the entire year
of 2017.

Write -downs and provisions

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Receivables write-downs - (15)
Total 0 (15)

27. Revenue from equity investments

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Income (Charges) from investments in subs. 23,481 22,13¢
Income (Charges) from investments in other comp. 69 111
Revaluation of investments 194 529
Write-down of investments (944) (881)
Total 22,800 21,898

The change in the balance with respect to last yedetsiled in the following table

Income (Charges) from equity investments in subsidiaries

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Marr S.p.A. (dividends) 23,481 22,13¢
Total 23,481 22,139

"Income from equity investments in subsidiaries" consists of etidisl distributed by the subsidiary MARR
S.p.A. totalling 25 million euro.

Income (charg@drom equity investments in other companies
The 2017 balance of the item under examination includ#gidends received in the year froBPER Banca

S.p.A. %9.0 housanceuro) andFutura S.r.l. (9.4housandeuro).

Write -downs of investments

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Banca Popolare di Vicenza S.p.A. in compulsory liquidation 2) (136)
Global Service S.r.l. 194 -
Imprenditori E-Marco Polo (41) -
Interjet S.r.l. (901) (745)
Total (750) (881)

As already described in paragraphs 3 "Investments in subsidiaries and associates" and 4 "Investments in other
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companies”, the receivables are impaired. In particular,niestment in Interjet S.r.l. was written down to

reflect losses incurred in 20lwhile the equity investment in Global Service S.r.l. was written up store
part of the writeedowns conducted in the past directed at aligning the value of the holdiily the
corresponding value of the company6s sharehol d

28. Financial (Income)/Charge

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Income (Charges) from management of derivatives (37) -
Net financial Income (Charges) (2,360) (1,837)
Total (2,397) (1,837)
In detail:

Income (charges) from management of derivatives

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Realized Income (Charges) from management of derivatives 37) -

Valuation Income (Charges) from management of derivatives = -
Total (37) 0

Net financial income (charges)

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Financial Income (Charges) from controlling companies (35) (36)
Financial Income (Charges) from subsidiaries (55) 15
Financial Income (Charges) from associated companies - -
Financial income

- Bank interest receivable 71 3

- Other financial income 39 58
Total financial income 110 61
Financial charges

- Interest payable on loans (2,182) (1,677)

- Interest payable on current accounts and others (131) (164)

- Other bank charges (29) (30)

- Other sundry charges (38) (6)
Total financial charges (1,380) (1,877)
Total (1,360) (1,837)

er

The item groups the total of the interest payable catted to the Groud treasury service and interest,
commissions and charges payable to banks and other finanBeso commented in the Directors' Report,

the decrease in financial chasggompared to the previous year benefitted from both the reduaebt and a
positive interest rate trend that reduced the cost of money.

Below is the breakdown of financial charges and income to/from subsidiaries:

(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Chef Express S.p.A. (26) 40
Global Service S.r.l. (10) (10)
INALCA S.p.A. 7 25
Interjet S.r.l. (15) (18)
Marr S.p.A. (12) (22)
Total (55) 15
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29. Income taxes
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(Euro/000) 2017 2016
Net income from subs. for transferred taxable amounts 7 329
IRES previous years (125) (40)
(118) 289

IRAP - -
Provision for deferred/pre-paid taxes 585 566
IRAP previous years = (6)
Effect of change in IRES tax rate effective from 2017 - -
585 560

Total 467 849

The IRES (Corporate Income Tax) balance refers to the income connected tordkalt of the tax

consolidation in which Cremonini S.p.A. participated as the consolidating company.

Reconciliation of theoretical tax burden and actual tax burden

IRES
(Euro/000) Year 2017 Year 2016
Taxable amoun Tax Taxable amoun Tax
Profit before taxation 18,690 16,868
Taxation rate 27.5% 27.5%
Theoretical tax burden (5,140) (4,639)
Permanent differences
Non-deductible amortization and depreciation 197 199
Write-down of financial assets (non-deductible part) 944 881
Taxes and tax amnesties 261 256
Other non-deductible costs 298 299
Total 1,700 1,635
Dividends from foreign companies (22,372, (21,138
Irap deductible (46) (12)
Gains on disposals subject to substitute tax (194) (529)
Other (394) (240)
Total (23,006) (21,919)
Timing differences deductible in future years
Provisions to taxed funds 0 15
Other 268 340
Total 268 355
Timing differences taxable in future years
Anticipated depreciations - -
Other - -
Total 0 0
Reversal of timing diff. from previous years
Capital gains on disposal of real estate 2,435 2,585
Total 2,435 2,585
Use of taxed provisions (35) (654)
Other (76) (66)
Total (111) (720)
Taxable income (24) (1,196)
Tax rate 27.5% 27.5%
Actual tax durden 7 329
Ires previous years (125) (40)
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IRAP
(Euro/000) Year 2017 Year 2016
Taxable amoun Taxable amoun
Profit before taxation 18,690 16,868
Costs not relevant for IRAP
Financial Income/Charges 1,397 1,837
Revenues from equity investments (22,800, (21,898,
Write-downs and provisions 0 15
Personnel cost 2,459 2,667
Deductible personnel cost -
Ohers
Total (18,944) (17,379)
Theoretical taxable amount 0 0
Taxation rate 3.90% 3.90%
Actual tax burden 0 0
Irap previous years (6)

Other information

Pursuant to the law the total fees due to the dators, members of the Board of Statutory Auditors and
independent auditors are noted below:

1 Directors: 1,069 thousandeuro

1 Board of Statutory Auditors 73 thousandeuro

1 Independent auditors 65 thousandeuro
(Euro/000) Company that provided the service Recipien Fees pertaining to 201
Audit PricewaterhouseCoopers S.p Cremonini S.p.A 65,457
Total 65,457

Events occurring after thend of the financial year

Please refer to the Directors' Report for details of the other events occurring after the financialeyehr

Castelvetro di Modena6 March2018

THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(Cav. Lav. Luigi Cremonini)
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Annhexes

These annexes contain information additional to that reported in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and form an integral part thereof:

Annex 1 - Breakdown of receivables and payables from/to subsidiaries, associated, cuntaoid
related companies as at 31 December 201

Annex 2 - List of revenues and costs from/to subsidiaries, associated controlling and r
companies for the 204 financial year;

Annex 3 - Statement of changes in tangible assets for the financialeyeed as at 31 Decembs
2017,

Annex 4 - Statement of changes in intangible assets for the financial year ended as at 31 De
2017,

Annex 5 - List of equity investments classified under ranrent assets as at 31 December 201

Annex 6 - List of equityinvestments in subsidiaries and associatethpanies as at 31 Decemb

2017 (Article 2427, paragraph 5, of the Italian Civil Code).
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Annex 1

Breakdown of receivables and payables from/to subsidiaries, associated, controlling and
related companies as 81 December 20X

(Euro/000) Treasury Trade Other Total
Receivable: Payables Receivable: Payables Receivable: Payables Receivable Payables
Subsidiaries: (a) (b)
As.ca. S.p.A. - - 147 - - 483 147 483
Avirail Italia S.r.l. in lig. - - 2 - 8 - 10
Azienda Agricola Corticella S.r.l. - - 621 - - - 621 -
Chef Express S.p.A. - 1,962 12 1,407 - 1,308 12 4,677

Cremonini Chef Iberica S.A. - - - - - - - -
Cremonini Restauration S.A.S. - - - - - - - -

E-Marco Polo (E-MP) Spa 150 - - - - - 150 -

Fiorani & C. S.p.A. - - 101 - - - 101 -

Ges.Car. Sur.l. - - 564 - - - 564 -

Global Service Logistics S.r.l. in liquidazione - - - - - - - -

Global Service S.r.l. - 1,731 69 3 14 3 83 1,737

Guardamiglio S.r.l. - - 128 - - - 128 -

INALCA S.p.A. - 2,486 - 1,620 - - - 4,106

Inalca Food & Beverage S.r.l. - - - 80 - - - 80

Interjet S.r.l. - 1,558 1 - - 287 1 1,845

Italia Alimentari S.p.A. - - - 865 - - - 865

Marr S.p.A. - 1,258 - 347 - 765 - 2,370

Momentum Services Ltd - - 5 - - - 5 -

New Catering S.r.l. - - - 91 24 - 24 91

Realbeef S.r.l. - - 48 - - - 48 -

Roadhouse S.p.A. - - - 68 - 626 - 694

Roadhouse Grill Roma S.r.l. - - - 1,409 203 - 203 1,409

Sara S.r.l. - - - 1 - - - 1

Tecnostar Due S.r.l. - - - 113 - - - 113
Total subsidiaries 150 8,995 1,696 6,006 241 3,480 2,087 18,481
Associated companies:

Time Vending S.r.l. - - 27 - - - 27 -
Total associated companies - - 27 - - - 27 -
Controlling companies:

Cremofin S.r.l. - 8,036 15 35 - - 15 8,071
Total controlling companies - 8,036 15 35 - - 15 8,071

(a) Other receivables include receivables for IRES (corporate tax) benefits transferred to the Parent Company.

(b)The other payables include payables for IRES (corporate tax) benefits transferred to the Parent Company.
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Annex 2

List of revenues and costs from/to subsidiaries, associated controlling and related companies

for the 2017 financial year

(Euro/000) Revenues Total Expenses Total
Financial Services Sales Other revenues Financial Services Sales Other expenses
(a)
Subsidiaries:

Azienda Agricola Corticella S.r.l. - - - - - - - - - -

Chef Express S.p.A. 1 2,098 3 398 2,500 27 99 - - 126

Chef Express UK Ltd - 25 - - 25 - - - - -

Cremonini Restauration S.A.S. - - - - - - - - - -

Fiorani & C. S.p.A. - - - - - - - - - -

Ges.Car. Sir.l. - - - - - - - - - -

Global Service S.r.l. - 60 - 33 93 10 178 - 195 383

Guardamiglio S.r.l. - - - - - - - - R -

INALCA S.p.A. 10 1,152 2 25 1,189 3 35 - - 38

Imprenditori per E-Marco Polo - - - - - - - - 41 41

Inalca Food & Beverage S.r.l. - 55 2 54 111 - - - - -

Interjet S.r.l. - 11 - - 11 15 40 - 901 956

Italia Alimentari S.p.A. - 282 - 1 283 - 23 - - 23

MARR S.p.A. - 1,222 - 23,484 24,706 11 4 1 1 17

Momentum Services Ltd - 5 - - 5 - - - - -

New Catering S.r.l. - 6 - - 6 - - - - -

Railrest S.A. - 8 - - 8 - - - B -

Realbeef S.r.l. - 5 - - 5 - R - - -

Roadhouse S.p.A. - 752 1 93 846 - 1 - - 1

Roadhouse Grill Roma S.r.l. - 24 - - 24 - - - - -

Sara S.r.l. - - - - - - - - - -

Tecnostar Due S.r.l. - 57 - 36 93 - 29 - - 29
Total subsidiaries 11 5,762 8 24,124 29,905 66 409 1 1,138 1,614
Associated companies:

Quinto Valore S.c.a.r.l. - - - - - - - - - -

Time Vending S.r.l. - 11 - 143 154 - - - - -
Total associated companies - 11 - 143 154 - - - - -
Controlling companies:

Cremofin S.r.l. - - - 5 5 35 - - - 35
Total controlling companies - - - 5 5 35 - - - 35
(a) Other revenues include dividends from subsidiaries
Related companies:

Banca Popolare di Vicenza - - - - - - R -

Totale related companies - - - - - - - - 2

(a) Other revenues include dividends from subsidiaries
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Annex 5

List of equity investments classified under wamrent assets as at 3ecember 20X

(E uro/000) Initial Purchases or (Wiite-downs)  Other Final
Company name Percentag value subscriptions Disposals Revaluations changes Percentag  value Note
Subsidiaries:

Chef Express S.p.A. 100.00 56,070 100.00 56,070

Global Serice S .r.l. 100.00 756 194 100.00 950

INALCAS .p.A. 71.60 138,209 71.60 138,209

InterjetS .r.l. 100.00 2,467 1,000 (901) 100.00 2,566

MARR S .p.A. 50.42 57,937 50.42 57,937

Imprenditori per E-Marco P olo (I-E MP) 60.00 60 (41) 60.00 19
TJotal subsidiaries 255,499 1,000 0 (748) 0 255,751
Cthercompanies:

Futura S .p.A. 963 963

Banco Popolare Societa Cooperativa * 0 0

Banca Popolare di Vicenza in compulsory liquidation 3 3)

Otherminor companies 67 1 68
Total other companies 1.033 0 0 (3) 1 1.031
Financial assets held forsale

BPER Banca S.p.A. 4,184 (47) 4,137

Banco Popolare Societa Cooperativa * 221 32 0 253 a)
Total Financial assets held forsale 4,405 0 0 (15) 0 4,390

a) the investmentwrite-off has been booked in the specific equity reserve "Fairvalue reserve”

* Company merged in BancoBPM S .p.A. on 01/01/2017.
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STATUTORY AUDITORREPORT
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Via Modena no. 58 Castelvetro di Modena (1)
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MEETING

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

drawn up pursuant and consequent to

Art. 2429.2 of the Italian Civil Code
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This report was approved by the Board in time for its filing at the td y @ Qa NBXIAZGSNBR 2FFA
preceding the date of the first call for a shareholders' meeting to approve these financial statements.

The Board of Directors has thus made the following documents approved on 26/03/2018 available, relating to
the year ended as at 31 December 2017:

Draft financial statements, complete with explanatory notes and cash flow statement;

Directors' Report

Knowledge of the company, risk assessment and report on the appointments

The Board of Statutory Auditors, acknowl@uy by this time their consolidated knowledge, declares in
connection with the company and as far as concerns:

i) the typology of work carried out;

i) the organizational and accounting structure.

This report therefore summarises the business concernimgitifiormation provided in Art. 2429.2 of the Civil
Code and more specifically,

- on theresults;

- on thecarried out in the fulfilment of the duties provided by the legislation;

- on observations and the proposals regarding the financial statémaevith particular reference to possible
utilisation by the Board of Directors of the exception mentioned in Art. 2423.4 of the Civil Code and the
possible receipt of reports made by shareholders mentioned in2%®8 of the Civil Code.

The work carriecbut by the Board regarded the entire year and during the year the meetings mentioned in

Art. 2404 of the Civil Code were regularly conducted and for such meetings appropriate minutes were

prepared, duly signed, for unanimous approval.

Work carried out

TS . 2 NR 20604l AYySR 1y26ftSR3IS 2F (KS S@2ftdzirazy 2F {(KS

particular attention to the problems of a contingent and/or extraordinary nature for the purpose of identifying

the financial impact on the results féine year and equity structure. The Board therefore periodically evaluated

G§KS | RSljdz- 08 2F (GKS O2YLI yeQa 2NBHIYATIFIGAZ2YIE YR ¥dzy

anticipated minimum requirements from the company's performance.

The relatonships with the persons operating in the aforesaid structumdirectors employees and external

consultants are inspired by the reciprocal collaboration in compliance with the roles to which each is

entrusted, the Board of Statutory Auditors having dlad those.

The Board of Statutory Auditors is able to observe for the full duration of the financial year that:

- the internal administrative personnel appointed for recording corporate events has not substantially
changed with respect to the previous yeard is updated;

- the level of their technical preparation updated with respect to the types of ordinary corporate events to
be recorded can claim sufficient knowledge of the corporate issues;

- the external consultants and professionals for accounting, taxparate and legal assistance have not
changed and accordingly have historical knowledge of the work and management issues, including

extraordinaryones, whichhave influenced the financial statements results.
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The information required by Art. 2381.5 of ti@vil Code. was provided by the Chief Executive Officer, with
FTNBIdzSyOe SEOSSRAYy3I (G(KS YAYAYdzY FAESR G ¢ Y2yi(iK&ao®
approve the interim management cash flow statements prepared quarterly, and both throtng
programmed meetings of the Board and by telephonic and information systems contacts/information flows
with members of the Board of DirectorBom all the above it is clear that the executisieectors have, in
substance and form, respected that imgexd thereon by the aforesaid legislation.

In conclusion, for that it was possible to observe during the work carried out during the financial year, the

Board of Statutory Auditors can establish that:

- the decisions made by the shareholders and the BoarDicéctors conformed to the law and Bylaws and
clearly there were no imprudent actions such as to definitively compromise the integrity of the
shareholders' equity;

- sufficient information was acquired relating to the general company performance and itsoduiths well
as on the transactions of greater significance , by size or characteristics, conducted by the company in 2017
and the first few months of the current year,

- the transactions conducted also conformed to the law and Bylaws and did not poterdtaityast with
resolutions passed by the Shareholders’ Meeting or such as to compromise the integrity of the
shareholders' equity;

- we have not discovered atypical and/or unusual corporate transactions conducted with third parties or
related parties duringhe course of the financial year. The Ingnoup transactions and those with related
parties realised in 2017, which are adequately described in the explanatory notes to the financial
statements, form part of normal management and were regulated at maskatlitions;

- y2 ALSOATAO 20aSNBIFGA2ya FNB YIR Ay O2yySOilAizy

representing the operational events;

- during the supervision work, as described above, no further significant facts arose such as to require
notification in this report;

- itwas not necessary to intervene regarding omissions of the Board of Directors pursuant to Art. 2406 of the
Civil Code;

- The Bard of Statutory Auditors acknowledge that the Board of Directors stated the safeguards put into
place for risk management and uncertainties to which the company is exposed in its Report;

- no reports were received pursuant #rt. 2408 of the Civil Codéhe Boardhas not issued opinions during

the course of the financial year.
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- Observations and proposals regarding the financial statements and their approval

The draft financial statements for the year ended at 31 December 2017 were approved by the Board of
Directors and constitute the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement and
Explanatory Notes.

Furthermore:

1 The Board of Directors has also prepared the Directors' Report mentioned in Art. 2428 7 of the Civil Code.

1 these dbcuments were delivered to the Board of Statutory Auditors in time in order that they are filed at
GKS O02YLIyeQa NBIAAGSNBR 2FFAOS 4AGK (KAa NBLR2NIZ
2429.1 of the Civil Code.

1 the audit is entrusted to PeewaterhouseCoopers s.p.a., which has prepared its report pursuant to Art. 14
of Legislative Decree no. 39 of 27 January 2010. The report, issued on 13/04/2018 does not include
observations on significant deviations, or rather negative opinions or the $gipility of giving an opinion
or disclosure references and the opinion issued is consequently positive.

The draft financial statements were therefore examined in connection with which the following further

information is again provided:

the financial stéeements for the year were prepared in accordance with international accounting standards

(IAS/IFRS), pursuant to the directives of Legislative Decree. 38/2005 implemented by regulation EC no.

1606/2002 of the European Parliament and Council of 19/07/2002.

- the measurement criteria of the assets and liabilities items were checked and do not substantially differ
from those adopted in the preceding financial years, with the exception of the accounting standards,
amendments and interpretations applicable fromJanuary 2017, amendments IAS 12 and IAS 17, which
nevertheless have no impacts on these financial statements;

- observance of the legal regulations inherent in the preparation of the Directors' Report was verified and, in
this connection we have no observaitis that must be shown in this report;

- the Board of Directors, in the preparation of the financial statements, has not disregarded the legal
regulations pursuant to Art. 2423.5 of the Civil Code in the compatibility with the international accounting
standads;

- the correspondence of the financial statements to the events and information was verified, at which we
were aware following performance of the typical duties of the Board of Statutory Auditors and in this
connection further observations are not given

- the information required by Art. 242Bis of the Civil Code, relative to derivative instruments, was provide
in the explanatory notes ;

- LG A& FOly26tSRISR GKIG 2y Mg 5SOSYOSNI wamt GKS 02
the Organisatioal Model and Code of Ethics, pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/01, for the purpose of
adoption of the new offences introduced in the legislation.
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0on16/03/2018 and no criticalities emerged with respect to the Organisational Model that must be shown in
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this report.
The results for the year
The net profit (loss) established by Board of Directors relating to the year ended as at 31 December 2017, as
also showrfrom reading the financial statements, was a profit of 19,157,255.66 euro.
wSIIFNRAYI GKS . 2FNR 2F S5ANBOG2NEQ LINRLRalt 2y ftf20L
does not have observations; however it notes that the decision in tlisnection must be made by the
Shareholders' Meeting.
Conclusions
Based on that shown above, brought to the attention of the Board of Statutory Auditors and discovered from
the periodic checks carried out, it is unanimously considered that there are pediments to your approval of
the draft financial statements for the year ended as at 31 December 2017, as prepared and proposed to you by

the Board of Directors.

Castelvetro (MO), 13/04/2018

The Board of Statutory Auditors

Eugenio Orienti Ghairman) signed
Paola Simonelli$tatutory audito) signed
Giulio Palazzdstatutory audito) signed
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Independent auditor’s reporl
in aocordance with article 14 of Legislative Decree No. 39 af 27 January 2010

Tothe shareholders of Cremonini SpA

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

‘We have audited the financial statements of Cremonini SpA (hereinafter also the O:Impan_l.r'} which
comprise the statement of financial position as of 51 December 2017, the income statement, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in the shareholders’ equity, the cash
flows statement for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a trie and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as of 31 December 2017 and of the result of its operations and cash flows for the vear then
ended in secordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union,

Basis _for opinion

We conducted our andit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Ttalia).

Our responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for

thie Audit of the Financial Statements section of this report. We are independent of the Company

'E'ursua.l:ll to the regulations and standards on ethics and independence applicable to audits of
nancial statements under Italian law. We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of monagement and those charged with governance for the finaneial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in aceordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
and, in the terms prescribed by law, for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

PricewaterhouseCoopers SpA
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Management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continuee as a going concern and, in
preparing the financial statements, for the approprizte application of the going concern basis of
scccunting, and for disclosing matters related to going concern. In preparing the financial statements,
manzgement uses the going concern basis of aceounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing, in the terms prescribed by law, the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (TSA Ttalia) will
alwayvs detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from frawd or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financizl statements.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Anditing (1SA Ttalia),
we exercised our professional judgement and maintzined professional scepticism throwghout the
audit. Furthermore:

. We identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to frand or error; we designed and performed andit procedures responsive to
those risks; we obtained andit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
Omissions, misTepresentations, or the override of internal control;

* We obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;

. We evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by manzagement;
. We concluded on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast sipnificant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw sttention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
ar, if such disclosures are inzdequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

sofy
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. We evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disddosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicated with those charged with governance, identified at an appropriate level as required
by ISA Italia, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified
during our andit.

Report on compliance with other laws and regulations

Opinion in accordance with article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree
No. 39/10

Management of the company is responsible for preparing a report on operations of Cremonini SpA as
of 31 December 2017, including its consistency with the relevant financial statements and its
compliance with the law.

We have performed the procedures required under auditing standard (SA Italia) No. 7208 in order to
express an opinion on the consistency of the report on operations with the financial statements of

Cremonini SpA as of 31 December 2017 and on its compliance with the law, as well astoissue a
statement on material misstatements, if any.

In our opinion, the report on operations is consistent with the financial statements of Cremonini SpA
as of 31 December 2017 and is prepared in compliance with the law.

With reference to the statement referred to in article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree
No. 39/10, issued on the basis of our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have nothing to report.

Bologna, 13 April 2018

PricewaterhouseCoopers SpA
Signed by

Edoardo Orlandoni

(Partner)

This report has been translated into English from the Italian original solely for the convenience of
international readers
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